
Special Meeting of the Fairfield County Budget Commission 
July 14, 2025, 8:30 a.m. 
108 North High Street 

Lancaster, Ohio 

A. Welcome & Pledge of Allegiance

B. Public Comments

C. Approval of Minutes of June 30, 2025

Motion for the Approval of Minutes of June 30, 2025 

D. Review of Action Items

E. Resolutions, Voting List

Motion for the approval of resolution 07.14.2025.a : A resolution to sign 
Official Certificates of Estimated Resources for multiple entities  

F. Open Items

G. Next Regular Meeting – Monday, July 28, 2025, 8:30 a.m.

H. Adjourn



 

 
 

Regular Meeting of the Fairfield County Budget Commission 
June 30, 2025, 8:30 a.m. 

108 North High Street 
Lancaster, Ohio 

 
A. Welcome & Pledge of Allegiance & Announcements 

 
Attending were Jim Bahnsen (County Treasurer),  Carri Brown (County Auditor),and 
Witt (County Prosecutor). 
 
At 8:30 a.m., attendees welcomed one another and said the pledge of allegiance. 
 

B. Public Comments 
 

There were no public comments. 
 

C. Approval of Minutes from May 27, 2025 
 

Motion for the Approval of Minutes of  May 27, 2025 
 

The minutes were provided to Budget Commission members by email and were 
available during the meeting.  Minutes are also posted on the website. 

 
On the motion of Jim Bahnsen and the second of Carri Brown, the Budget Commission 
voted to approve the minutes of May 27, 2025. 
 
Discussion: None. 
 
Roll call vote of the motion resulted as follows: 
Voting aye thereon:  Jim Bahnsen and Carri Brown. 
 
The motion carried. 
 
Prosecutor Witt joined the meeting at 8:33 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
D. Review of Action Items 
 
Dr. Brown reported that action for the meeting was to approve and sign Amended 
Certificates of Estimated Resources for multiple taxing districts. A meeting packet was 
emailed to Commission members prior to the meeting for review. 
 
E. Resolution, Voting List 

 
Motion for the approval of resolution 06.30.2025.a:  A resolution to sign the Official Certificates 
of Estimated Resources for multiple entities 
 
On the motion of Jim Bahnsen and the second of Kyle Witt, the Budget Commission voted to 
approve resolution 06.30.2025.a: A resolution to sign the Official Certificates of Estimated 
Resources for multiple entities. 
 
Discussion:  Dr. Brown reported that the amendments were based on the most recent 
information provided by the various political subdivisions.  The new platform of DocLink was 
used to prepare for this meeting, and we are receiving a lot of positive feedback about the 
platform.  
 

Roll call vote of the motion resulted as follows: 
Voting aye thereon: Jim Bahnsen, Kyle Witt, and Carri Brown. 
 
The motion carried. 

 
F. Open Items  

 
Dr. Brown provided an update on the analysis for the library allocation. The libraries do not 
have consensus (as was the case last year), and there is a detailed analysis based on multiple 
variables reflective of need.  Updated packets for the library allocation have been provided to 
the Budget Commission members and to the library directors. Key updates in the packet 
(updated in June from April 2025) include: 

 Inclusion of the CLC costs common to all libraries. While this did not change any of the 
rounded figures, it did slightly affect the adjustment related to the minimum allocation. 

 A new summary chart comparing the proposed model to the prior year’s percentage 
allocations. 

 



 

 

Please note that while the proposed model does not assign specific population figures to the 
libraries, it incorporates a variety of variables, including considerations related to population 
and each library's current circumstances and needs. 

Also based on library directors’ input, the draft resolution now reflects a three-year application 
period instead of the five-year timeframe used for local government fund allocations. 

As always, if the three libraries came to a consensus on a formula—based on variables they 
select (whether population-based, other factors, or a combination)—that agreed-upon model 
would be accepted.  Dr. Brown will meet with the library directors again on July 1 to gather 
more feedback and to show transparency in the analysis.   

The libraries have provided variables for consideration.  At present, there is recognition of a 
minimum for Wagnall’s based on the need they are presenting at a time when they are 
reducing hours and services and using carryover cash.  Here is a summary of the current 
proposed model for quick reference: 

The proposed library allocation formula reflects a data-driven approach grounded in current 
budgetary and performance variables, including key indicators such as salaries, fringe benefits, 
and circulation. Moving away from a consensus-based model used from 2004–2024, the Budget 
Commission collected updated data through a collaborative survey process involving all three 
libraries. The results led to a recommended allocation of 56.32% for Fairfield County, 37.68% 
for Pickerington, and a minimum of 6.00% for Wagnalls Memorial Library. This minimum, 
consistent with the historical low for the smallest library, recognizes unique challenges in the 
county and ensures a baseline level of support. The adjusted percentages reflect need and 
maintain alignment with industry standards while promoting fairness and sustainability. To 
encourage stability and planning, the formula is proposed to remain in place for three years, 
with a review scheduled for 2028, unless a new consensus is reached earlier. 
 
Comparison of Percentages, Three Years Compared to the Prior Year 
Multiple Variables Demonstrating Need Are Considered; A Minimum of 6 % Is Applied 
 

Library 2025-2028 2024 Difference 
Fairfield County 56.32 57.55 -1.23 

Pickerington 37.68 35.64 2.04 
Wagnalls 6 6.81 -0.81 

 
 



 

 
 
Note:  As of June 14, 2025, the amount of the shared revenues has not been received from the 
state; therefore, the actual dollar amount changes are not yet known. 
 
In other open items, Kyle Witt indicated Amy Brown Thompson would serve as his designee for 
the August meeting. 
 

G. Notice:  The next special meeting is Monday, July 14, 2025, 8:30 a.m.   
 

H. Adjourn 
 

On the motion of Kyle Witt and the second of Jim Bahnsen, the Budget Commission 
voted to adjourn at 8:55 a.m. The motion carried. 

 
I certify the minutes above are true and accurate for the Fairfield County Budget Commission 
Meeting held June 30, 2025. 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
           Dr. Carri L. Brown, County Auditor 



To: The Fairfield County Budget Commission

From: Amanda Rollins, Settlements Analyst

Date: 07/14/25

Subject: 7/14/25 SPECIAL BC Packet

The chart below outlines the amended certificates proposed by political subdivisions and are in 
order of the type of political subdivision.

Name of 
Political 
Subdivision

Change to 
Revenue 
Estimate

Fund Name Fund Type Comments, if 
any

Deemed 
Reasonable,
Y or N

City Of 
Lancaster

$150,000.00 (1001) 
General 
Fund

General 
Fund

Resolution 
46-25, 55-
25, 34-25,
39-25

Y

City Of 
Lancaster

$25,000.00 (2073) 
Community 
Development 
Block Grant 
(CDBG)

Special 
Revenue 
Fund

Resolution 
45-25

Y

City Of 
Lancaster

$6,449,088.00 (3020)  
Capital 
Improvement 
Fund

Capital 
Projects 
Fund

Resolution 
52-25

Y

City Of 
Lancaster

$153,482.41 (3060) 
Timbertop 
TIF Fund

Capital 
Projects 
Fund

Resolution 
31-25

Y

City Of 
Lancaster

$3,183,199.00 (6019)  
Storm Water 
Utility 
Reserve

Enterprise 
Fund

Resolution 
42-25

Y

City Of 
Lancaster

$2,500,000.00 (6027) 
Water Utility 
Reserve

Enterprise 
Fund

Resolution 
36-25

Y

City Of 
Lancaster

$11,319,400.00 (6029)  
Waste Water 
Utility 
Reserve

Enterprise 
Fund

Resolution 
41-25

Y

City Of 
Lancaster

$11,000.00 (7022)  
Health 
Insurance 
Management

Internal 
Service 
Fund

Grants 

46-25
Y

Village Of 
Carroll

$6,054,146.00 Multiple Special 
Revenue 

Resolution 

Y

Lithopolis
$75,000.00 5201 - Sewer 

Fund
Enterprise 
Fund

Ordinance 
27-25

YVillage Of 



07.14.25.a   A resolution to sign Amended Official Certificates of Estimated 
Resources for multiple taxing districts 

WHEREAS, The Fairfield County Auditor’s Office has received sufficient information 
to prepare Amended Official Certificates of Estimated Resources for multiple taxing 
districts, as attached; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE FAIRFIELD COUNTY BUDGET 
COMMISSION, COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD, STATE OF OHIO: 

Section 1. The Fairfield County Budget Commission authorizes signing the attached 
Amended Official Certificates of Estimated Resources for multiple taxing districts. 

Section 2. The Fairfield County Budget Commission authorizes the County Auditor’s 
Office to provide copies of the Amended Official Certificates of Estimated Resources 
to the multiple entities, retaining a file copy. 

Prepared by: Amanda Rollins, Settlements Analyst 

Supplemental materials are attached. 





AMENDED OFFICIAL CERTIFICATE NO. 4 Fiscal Year: 2025

OFFICIAL CERTIFICATE OF ESTIMATED RESOURCES
 

REVISED CODE SECTION 5705.36

County Auditor's Office, Fairfield County, Ohio Date: 07/14/25

Fiscal Year: 2025
Taxing Authority: City Of Lancaster
Submitted By: Allison Ray

The following is the "Official Certificate of Estimated Resources" for the fiscal year beginning fiscal year 2025 as 
revised by the Budget Commission of Fairfield County, which shall govern the total of appropriations made at any 
time during the fiscal year:

Funds Unencumbered
Balance Taxes Rollbacks & Other 

Sources Total
General Fund $20,186,103.21 $3,096,000.00 $21,733,700.63 $45,015,803.84

Special Revenue Fund $24,851,388.87 $3,478,614.00 $68,915,027.75 $97,245,030.62
Debt Service Fund $553.88 $0.00 $824,860.00 $825,413.88

Capital Projects Fund $6,082,033.77 $0.00 $8,850,443.62 $14,932,477.39
Enterprise Fund $58,595,237.99 $0.00 $136,631,291.75 $195,226,529.74

Internal Service Fund $6,206,245.54 $0.00 $15,687,732.00 $21,893,977.54
Fiduciary Fund $5,937,021.48 $0.00 $468,500.00 $6,405,521.48

Total All Funds $121,858,584.74 $6,574,614.00 $253,111,555.75 $381,544,754.49

Tricia Nettles/ Anitra Scott/ Elanta Ohare Treasurer
City Of Lancaster
104 E Main Street
Lancaster,Ohio,43130

Budget Commission:





Fiscal Year: 2025
Certificate Submission

County Auditor's Office, Fairfield County, Ohio Date: 07/14/25

Fiscal Year: 2025
Taxing Authority: City Of Lancaster
Submitted By: Allison Ray

Fund
Prev. Years
Est. Ending

Cash Bal
Advances

Est.
Carryover

Encumbrances

Start of
Year Est.

Unencumbered
Bal

Est.
Taxes

Est.
Rollbacks

Other
Taxes

Est.
Other

Sources

Total
Est.

Receipts

Total
Available

Source

Approp.
Budget

Unappropriated
Balance Warning

General Fund

(1001-
185.5415) 

Budget 
Stabilization 

(5705.13(A)(1
)

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(1001)  
General Fund

$20,186,103.21 $0.00 $0.00 $20,186,103.21 $3,096,000.00 $358,000.00 $0.00 $21,375,700.63 $24,829,700.63 $45,015,803.84 $23,159,6
20.08 $21,856,183.76

Special Revenue Fund

(2007)  
Cemetery 

Fund

$584,171.25 $0.00 $0.00 $584,171.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $879,488.88 $879,488.88 $1,463,660.13 $915,754.
75 $547,905.38

(2008)  
Department of 
Transportation

$1,453,872.33 $0.00 $0.00 $1,453,872.33 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,527,274.00 $4,527,274.00 $5,981,146.33 $4,703,61
9.75 $1,277,526.58

(2009)  3 Mil 
Levy Fund

$581,815.87 $0.00 $0.00 $581,815.87 $2,869,000.00 $205,500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $3,075,000.00 $3,656,815.87 $3,000,00
0.00 $656,815.87

(2012)  Parks 
and Recreation 

Fund

$3,284,540.52 $0.00 $0.00 $3,284,540.52 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,424,882.28 $4,424,882.28 $7,709,422.80 $4,826,99
2.25 $2,882,430.55



(2016)  
Income Tax 

Fund

$6,063,422.89 $0.00 $0.00 $6,063,422.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,750,000.00 $36,750,000.00 $42,813,422.89 $37,356,9
65.75 $5,456,457.14

(2020) Special 
Improvement 

District

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85,000.00 $85,000.00 $85,000.00 $85,000.0
0 $0.00

(2021)  Transit 
System (Taxi 
Token) Fund

$6,894.45 $0.00 $0.00 $6,894.45 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $869.00 $869.00 $7,763.45 $869.00 $6,894.45

(2023)  911 
TARFF - 

Police

$192,725.94 $0.00 $0.00 $192,725.94 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $192,725.94 $115,000.
00 $77,725.94

(2024)  E. 
Byrne Family 

Violence 
Grant

$427.56 $0.00 $0.00 $427.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $427.56 $0.00 $427.56

(2025)  Law 
Director - 

Victim 
Assistance

$48,250.01 $0.00 $0.00 $48,250.01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $128,250.01 $122,518.
00 $5,732.01

(2026)  
Lancaster 

Community 
Development 

Fund

$167,645.48 $0.00 $0.00 $167,645.48 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,005,192.00 $1,005,192.00 $1,172,837.48 $938,360.
00 $234,477.48

(2027)  Law 
Enforcement 
Block Grant

$23,058.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,058.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,058.00 $0.00 $23,058.00

(2028)  Police 
& Fire Pension

$29.58 $0.00 $0.00 $29.58 $609,614.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $609,614.00 $609,643.58 $609,643.
58 $0.00

(2030)  
Municipal 
Court CC 

Surveillance

$28,163.69 $0.00 $0.00 $28,163.69 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,163.69 $0.00 $28,163.69

(2031)  Public 
Sites & Open 
Spaces Fund

$211,300.76 $0.00 $0.00 $211,300.76 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $216,300.76 $15,000.0
0 $201,300.76

(2032)  
Indigent 
Driver-

Alcohol Fund

$203,700.03 $0.00 $0.00 $203,700.03 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $243,700.03 $200,000.
00 $43,700.03



(2033)  Law 
Enforcement-

Education 
Fund

$103,343.11 $0.00 $0.00 $103,343.11 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $103,343.11 $0.00 $103,343.11

(2034)  MC 
Judge 

Computerizati
on (1901.26)

$31,886.39 $0.00 $0.00 $31,886.39 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $71,886.39 $70,500.0
0 $1,386.39

(2035)  MC 
Probation 
(737.41 & 
2951.021)

$1,201,258.37 $0.00 $0.00 $1,201,258.37 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $872,510.00 $872,510.00 $2,073,768.37 $1,043,56
0.00 $1,030,208.37

(2036)  Muni 
Court Clerk-

Computer

$187,526.18 $0.00 $0.00 $187,526.18 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $210,000.00 $210,000.00 $397,526.18 $268,843.
00 $128,683.18

(2037)  Muni 
Court Special 

Projects

$522,113.77 $0.00 $0.00 $522,113.77 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $965,000.00 $965,000.00 $1,487,113.77 $1,374,01
6.00 $113,097.77

(2038)  Muni 
Court - Family 

Violence

$21,698.90 $0.00 $0.00 $21,698.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,698.90 $0.00 $21,698.90

(2039)  Muni 
Court - Drug 

Court Program

$210,952.50 $0.00 $0.00 $210,952.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $554,500.00 $554,500.00 $765,452.50 $696,033.
00 $69,419.50

(2040)  FEMA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(2041)  Ohio 
Peace Officers 

Training 
OPOTA

$40,833.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,833.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,833.00 $40,000.0
0 $833.00

(2042)  
OneOhio 
Opioid 

Settlement 
Fund

$199,563.06 $0.00 $0.00 $199,563.06 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $299,563.06 $181,392.
00 $118,171.06

(2043)  DARE 
Officer 

Retention 
Grant

$98,686.72 $0.00 $0.00 $98,686.72 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $98,686.72 $20,000.0
0 $78,686.72

(2044)  Safe 
Routes To 

School (SRTS)

$2,779.56 $0.00 $0.00 $2,779.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,779.56 $0.00 $2,779.56



(2046)  .15 
Fire Levy

$1,678,931.67 $0.00 $0.00 $1,678,931.67 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,256,529.37 $2,256,529.37 $3,935,461.04 $3,044,85
7.06 $890,603.98

(2047)  .45 
Police & Fire 

Levy

$3,906,037.42 $0.00 $0.00 $3,906,037.42 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,862,588.11 $6,862,588.11 $10,768,625.53 $10,415,4
61.88 $353,163.65

(2048)  DOJ 
Equitable 

Sharing Grant

$239,565.64 $0.00 $0.00 $239,565.64 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $245,565.64 $20,000.0
0 $225,565.64

(2049)  Court 
Electronic 
Monitoring

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(2051)  .45 
Police & Fire 

Levy 2021

$2,964,391.23 $0.00 $0.00 $2,964,391.23 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,769,588.11 $6,769,588.11 $9,733,979.34 $8,550,49
0.75 $1,183,488.59

(2052)  Local 
Fiscal 

Recovery 
Fund

$123,381.50 $0.00 $0.00 $123,381.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $123,381.50 $123,381.
50 $0.00

(2073) 
Community 

Development 
Block Grant 

(CDBG)

$75,692.26 $0.00 $0.00 $75,692.26 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,454,406.00 $1,454,406.00 $1,530,098.26 $1,429,40
6.00 $100,692.26

(2074) Home 
Loan Repay 
Revolving 

Acct

$27,191.49 $0.00 $0.00 $27,191.49 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 $27,691.49 $500.00 $27,191.49

(2075) CDBG 
Loan Repay 
Revolving 

Acct

$32,083.37 $0.00 $0.00 $32,083.37 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $700.00 $700.00 $32,783.37 $700.00 $32,083.37

(2083) Comm 
Dev Chip 

Home 
Program FD

$175,165.59 $0.00 $0.00 $175,165.59 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $597,000.00 $597,000.00 $772,165.59 $597,000.
00 $175,165.59

(2085) CDBG-
CV CARES 

ACT GRANT

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(2090)  State 
Highway Fund

$158,288.78 $0.00 $0.00 $158,288.78 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $222,000.00 $222,000.00 $380,288.78 $200,000.
00 $180,288.78

Debt Service Fund



(4013)  Bond 
Retirement 

Fund

$553.88 $0.00 $0.00 $553.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $824,860.00 $824,860.00 $825,413.88 $825,413.
88 $0.00

(4014)  Park $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(4015)  
Downtown 

Special 
Assessment

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Capital Projects Fund

(3014)  LDOT 
Improvement 

Fund

$488,869.53 $0.00 $0.00 $488,869.53 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $563,869.53 $486,000.
00 $77,869.53

(3015)  Parks 
Improvement 

Fund

$99,793.59 $0.00 $0.00 $99,793.59 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,435.29 $150,435.29 $250,228.88 $150,000.
00 $100,228.88

(3016)  
General 

Improvement 
Fund

$450,694.05 $0.00 $0.00 $450,694.05 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $175,000.00 $175,000.00 $625,694.05 $625,000.
00 $694.05

(3017)  
Improvement 

Fund

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(3020)  Capital 
Improvement 

Fund

$3,637,109.13 $0.00 $0.00 $3,637,109.13 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,009,783.92 $8,009,783.92 $11,646,893.05 $360,000.
00 $11,286,893.05

(3021)  Fire 
Capital 

Improvement

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(3022)  Fire 
Impact

$1,316,605.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,316,605.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,316,605.00 $125,000.
00 $1,191,605.00

(3023)  Code 
Enforcement - 
Fire Insurance 

Escrow

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(3030)  Ety Rd 
TIFF - 

Construction

$66.04 $0.00 $0.00 $66.04 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $66.04 $0.00 $66.04



(3031)  Ety Rd 
TIF - Service 
Fund (Island 

Capital 
Credits)

$12,775.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,775.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $190,000.00 $190,000.00 $202,775.00 $30,228.0
0 $172,547.00

(3060)  
Timbertop TIF 

Fund

$76,121.43 $0.00 $0.00 $76,121.43 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250,224.41 $250,224.41 $326,345.84 $96,742.0
0 $229,603.84

Enterprise Fund

(6002)  Gas 
Fund (900,000 

Adv)

$12,321,189.58 $0.00 $0.00 $12,321,189.58 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,637,484.88 $23,637,484.88 $35,958,674.46 $23,591,4
44.75 $12,367,229.71

(6003)  Water 
Fund

$7,983,078.54 $0.00 $0.00 $7,983,078.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,751,700.00 $11,751,700.00 $19,734,778.54 $14,539,5
14.87 $5,195,263.67

(6004)  Water 
Pollution 

Control Fund

$14,308,792.04 $0.00 $0.00 $14,308,792.04 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,464,789.00 $14,464,789.00 $28,773,581.04 $18,688,5
03.75 $10,085,077.29

(6005)  
Sanitation 

Fund

$2,345,783.49 $0.00 $0.00 $2,345,783.49 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,726,550.00 $5,726,550.00 $8,072,333.49 $6,296,22
6.75 $1,776,106.74

(6006)  Storm 
Water Utility  

- **

$1,266,393.92 $0.00 $0.00 $1,266,393.92 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,500,000.00 $3,500,000.00 $4,766,393.92 $3,472,70
0.75 $1,293,693.17

(6019)  Storm 
Water Utility 

Reserve

$2,542,700.66 $0.00 $0.00 $2,542,700.66 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,394,744.20 $4,394,744.20 $6,937,444.86 $3,729,24
5.86 $3,208,199.00

(6021)  Storm 
Water Repair 

& 
Improvement

$1,000,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00

(6022)  
Wellhead 
Protection

$500,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00

(6023)  W.P.C. 
Capital 

Replacement 
Fund - **

$1,688,044.29 $0.00 $0.00 $1,688,044.29 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $240,000.00 $240,000.00 $1,928,044.29 $794,725.
77 $1,133,318.52

(6025)  Div. of 
Water 

Improvement 
Fund

$1,335,923.26 $0.00 $0.00 $1,335,923.26 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $275,000.00 $275,000.00 $1,610,923.26 $618,000.
00 $992,923.26



(6026)  Water 
Construction

$1,986.40 $0.00 $0.00 $1,986.40 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,986.40 $1,986.40 $0.00

(6027)  Water 
Utility Reserve

$4,210,767.60 $0.00 $0.00 $4,210,767.60 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38,163,448.90 $38,163,448.90 $42,374,216.50 $39,751,4
15.92 $2,622,800.58

(6029)  Waste 
Water Utility 

Reserve

$8,916,979.11 $0.00 $0.00 $8,916,979.11 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $34,477,574.77 $34,477,574.77 $43,394,553.88 $28,903,2
16.74 $14,491,337.14

(6030)  
Wastewater 
Construction

$23,441.24 $0.00 $0.00 $23,441.24 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,441.24 $23,441.2
4 $0.00

(6096)  Utility 
Deposit Fund

$150,157.86 $0.00 $0.00 $150,157.86 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,157.86 $0.00 $150,157.86

Internal Service Fund

(7006)  
Utilities 

Collection 
Fund

$319,049.29 $0.00 $0.00 $319,049.29 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,274,372.00 $2,274,372.00 $2,593,421.29 $2,038,84
8.25 $554,573.04

(7010)  Fuel 
Depot Fund

$306,956.87 $0.00 $0.00 $306,956.87 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,184,000.00 $1,184,000.00 $1,490,956.87 $1,184,00
0.00 $306,956.87

(7020)   
Information 

Services

$496,156.71 $0.00 $0.00 $496,156.71 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,309,860.00 $1,309,860.00 $1,806,016.71 $1,384,12
1.75 $421,894.96

(7022)  Health 
Insurance 

Management

$5,016,352.72 $0.00 $0.00 $5,016,352.72 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,656,000.00 $10,656,000.00 $15,672,352.72 $10,085,8
25.00 $5,586,527.72

(7030)  
Environmental 

Engineering

$67,729.95 $0.00 $0.00 $67,729.95 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $263,500.00 $263,500.00 $331,229.95 $253,874.
00 $77,355.95

Fiduciary Fund

(8012)  Buster 
- Bureau of 

Underground 
Storage Tanks

$33,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,000.00 $33,000.0
0 $0.00



(8019)  
Treasury 

Investment 
Capital

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(8020)  
Budgetary 

Agency Fund

$128,552.37 $0.00 $0.00 $128,552.37 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $128,552.37 $0.00 $128,552.37

(8021)  Utility 
Agency 

Overpayments

$301,004.37 $0.00 $0.00 $301,004.37 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $301,004.37 $0.00 $301,004.37

(8022)  
Unclaimed 

Funds

$111,424.43 $0.00 $0.00 $111,424.43 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $111,424.43 $0.00 $111,424.43

(8023)  Code 
Enf. - Fire Ins. 

Escrow

$84,035.28 $0.00 $0.00 $84,035.28 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $90,000.00 $90,000.00 $174,035.28 $110,000.
00 $64,035.28

(8024)  Parks 
Rental 

Deposits

$121,884.90 $0.00 $0.00 $121,884.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $161,884.90 $50,000.0
0 $111,884.90

(8025)  
Treasurer 

Agency Fund

$25,617.65 $0.00 $0.00 $25,617.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,617.65 $0.00 $25,617.65

(8034)  
Treasurer's 
Cemetary 

Trust Capital 
Fund

$1,013,071.56 $0.00 $0.00 $1,013,071.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,000.00 $31,000.00 $1,044,071.56 $130,000.
00 $914,071.56

(8035)  
Treasurer's 
Cemetary 
Interment 

Fund

$279,654.80 $0.00 $0.00 $279,654.80 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $319,654.80 $27,000.0
0 $292,654.80

(8037)  
Treasurer's 

Post Closure 
Trust 

(Landfill)

$592,577.42 $0.00 $0.00 $592,577.42 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $592,577.42 $0.00 $592,577.42

(8038)  
Transfer 
Facility 
Closure 

Restricted 
Fund

$30,447.27 $0.00 $0.00 $30,447.27 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,447.27 $0.00 $30,447.27

(8050)  BWC 
Processing 

Fund

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00



(8055)  Hotel 
Motel Tax 

Fund

$66,988.88 $0.00 $0.00 $66,988.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200,000.00 $200,000.00 $266,988.88 $241,021.
00 $25,967.88

(8058)  Violet 
Twp - City of 
Lanc. JEDD

$3,313.40 $0.00 $0.00 $3,313.40 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $28,313.40 $25,000.0
0 $3,313.40

(8060)  
Escrow 

Deposits Fund

$3,145,449.15 $0.00 $0.00 $3,145,449.15 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,145,449.15 $3,145,44
9.15 $0.00

(8097)  Law 
Library Fund

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $42,500.00 $42,500.00 $42,500.00 $42,500.0
0 $0.00

Total All 
Funds $121,858,584.74 $0.00 $0.00 $121,858,584.74 $6,574,614.00 $563,500.00 $0.00 $252,548,055.7

5 $259,686,169.75 $381,544,754.49 $265,984,
930.18 $115,559,824.31



AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOTES IN
THE MAXMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF SEVEN MILLION DOLLARS
($7,OOO,OOO), IN ANTICIPATION OF THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS. FOR THE
PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF THE RENOVATION AND
REHABILITATION OF THE CITY HALL BUILDING AND OTHERWISE
IMPROVING THE SITE THEREFOR, TOGETHER WITH ALL NECESSARY
APPURTENANCES THERETO, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, this Council has requested that the Auditor, as fiscal officer of this
City, certif the estimated life or period ofusefulness ofthe Improvement described in Section
l, the estimated maximum maturity of the Bonds described in Section I and the maximum
maturity ofthe Notes described in Section 3; and

WHEREAS, the Auditor has certified to this Council that the estimated life or
period of usefulness of the Improvement described in Section I is at least five (5) years, the
estimated mfiimum maturity of the Bonds described in Section I is at least twenty (20) years,

and the maximum maturity of the Notes described in Section 3, to be issued in anticipation of
the Bonds is two hundred forty (240) months; now, therefore,

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LANCASTER. STATE
OF OHIO:

SECTION l. It is necessary to issue bonds of this City in the maximum principal
amount of $7,000,000 (the "Bonds") for the purpose of paying the costs ofthe renovation and

rehabilitation ofthe City Hall building and otherwise improving the site therefor, together with
all necessary appurtenances thereto (the "lmprovement").

SECTION 2. The Bonds shall be dated approximately April l, 2026, shall bear
interest at the now estimated rate of 6.00% per year, payable semiannually until the principal
amount is paid, and are estimaled to mature in twenty (20) annual principal installments on

December I ofeach year and in such amounts that the total principal and interest payments on
the Bonds, in any fiscal year in which principal is payable, shall be substantially equal. The
first principal payment ofthe Bonds is estimated to be December 1,2026.

SECTION 3. lt is necessary to issue and this Council determines that notes in the
maximum principal amount of$7,000,000 (the'Notes") shall be issued in anticipation ofthe
issuance of the Bonds for the purpose described in Section 1 and to pay the costs of the
lmprovement and any financing costs. The principal amount of Notes to be issued (not to
exceed the stated maximum principal amount) shall be determined by the Auditor in the
certificate awarding the Notes in accordance with Section 6 ofthis Ordinance (the "Certitlcate
of Award") as the amount which is necessary to pay the costs of the Improvement and any
financing costs. The Notes shall be dated the date ofissuance and shall mature not more than
one year following the date of issuance, provided that the Auditor shall establish the maturity
date in the Certificate ofAward. The Notes shall bear interest at a rate or rates not to exceed
6.00% per year (computed on the basis ofa 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months
or such other basis as shall be determined by the Auditor in the Certificate of Award), payable

TEMPORARY ORDINANCE NO. 19-25

PERMANENT ORDINANCE NO. LI -?S



at maturity and until the principal amount is paid or payment is provided for. The rate or rates

of interest on the Notes shall be determined by the Auditor in the Certificate of Award in accordance
with Section 6 of this Ordinance.

SECTION 4. The debt charges on the Notes shall be payable in lawful money of the United
States of America or in Federal Reserve funds of the United States of America as determined by the
Auditor in the Certificate of Award, and shall be payable, without deduction for services ofthe City's
paying agent, at the office ofthe Auditor or a bank or trust company designated by the Auditor in the
Certificate of Award after determining that the payment at that bank or trust company will not endanger
the funds or securities of the City and that proper procedures and safeguards are available for that
purpose or at the office ofthe Auditor ifagreed to by the Auditor and the original purchaser (the "Paying
Agent"). The Auditor is authorized, to the extent necessary or appropriate. to enter into an agreement
with the Paying Agent in connection with the services to be provided by the Paying Agent after
determining that the signing thereof will not endanger the funds or securities ofthe City.

SECTION 5. The Notes shall be signed by the Mayor and the Auditor in the name of the City
and in their official capacities, provided that one ofthose signatures may be a facsimile. The Notes shall
be issued in minimum denominations of$100,000 or any integral multiples of$5,000 in excess thereof
(and may be issued in denominations in such amounts in excess thereof as requested by the original
purchaser and approved by the Auditor) and with numbers as requested by the original purchaser and
approved by the Auditor. The entire principal amount may be represented by a single note and may be
issued as fully registered securities (for which the Auditor will serve as note registrar) and in book entry
form as described below, or other uncertificated form in accordance with Section 9.96 and Chapter 133

ofthe Ohio Revised Code if it is determined by the Auditor that issuance of fully registered securities
in that form will facilitate the sale and delivery ofthe Notes. The Notes shall not have coupons attached,
shall be transferable and numbered as determined by the Auditor and shall express upon their faces the
purpose, in summary terms, for which they are issued and that they are issued pursuant to this Ordinance.
The principal and interest on the Notes shall be payable by check or draft mailed by the City to the
registered holder of the Notes at close of business on the maturity date of the Notes at the registered
holder's address as it appears on the note register; provided, however, the City may enter into an
agreement with the registered holder of the Notes, providing for making the payment to the purchaser
ofprincipal and interest on the Notes at a place and in a manner (including wire transfer of federal funds)
other than as provided in this Ordinance, without prior presentation or surrender of the Notes. Upon
receipt ofthe principal and interest payments at maturity on the Notes, the registered holder thereof shall
cancel the notes and deliver them to the City.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Ordinance, if the Auditor determines in the
Certificate of Award that it is in the best interest ofand financially advantageous to the City, the Notes
may be issued in book entry form in accordance with the following provisions of this Section.

"Book entry form" or "book entry system" means a form or system under which (a) the
ownership of beneficial interests in the Notes and the principal of and interest on the Notes may be
transferred only through a book entry, and (b) a single physical Note certificate in fully registered form
is issued by the City and payable only to a Depository or its nominee as registered owner, with the
certificate deposited with and "immobilized" in the custody ofthe Depository or its designated agent
for that purpose. The book entry maintained by others than



the City is the record that identifies the owners ofbeneficial interests in the Notes and
that principal and interest.

"Depository" means any securities depository that is a clearing agency registered
pursuant to the provisions of Section I 7A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, operating
and maintaining, with its Participants or otherwise, a book entry system to record ownership of
beneficial interests in the Notes or the principal of and interest on the Notes, and to effect
transfers ofthe Notes, in book entry form, and includes and means initially The Depository
Trust Company (a limited purpose tnrst company), New York, New York.

"Participant" means any participant contracting with a Depository under a book entry
system and includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies and clearing
corporations.

The Notes may be issued to a Depository for use in a book entry system and, ifand as

long as a book entry system is utilized, (a) the Notes may be issued in the form ofa single Note
made payable to the Depository or its nominee and immobilized in the custody of the
Depository or its agent for that purpose; (b) the beneficial owners in book entry form shall have
no right to receive the Notes in the form of physical securities or certificates; (c) ownership of
beneficial interests in book entry form shall be shown by book entry on the system maintained
and operated by the Depository and its Participants, and transfers ofthe ownership ofbeneficial
interests shall be made only by book entry by the Depository and its Parricipants; and (d) the
Notes as such shall not be transferable or exchangeable, except for transfer to another
Depository or to another nominee of a Depository, without further action by the City.

Ifany Depository determines not to continue to act as a Depository for the Notes for
use in a book entry system, the Auditor may aftempt to establish a securities depository/book
entry relationship with another qualified Depository. lfthe Auditor does not or is unable to do
so, the Auditor, after making provision for notification ofthe beneficial owners by the then
Depository and any other arrangements deemed necessary, shall permit withdrawal of the

'Notes from the Depository, and shall cause the Notes in bearer or payable form to be signed by
the officers authorized to sign the Notes and delivered to the assigns of the Depository or its
nominee, all at the cost and expense (including any costs of printing), if the event is not the
result of City action or inaction, ofthose persons requesting such issuance.

The Auditor is also hereby authorized and directed, to the extent necessary or required.
to enter into any agreements determined necessary in connection with the book entry system
for the Notes, after determining that the signing thereofwill not endanger the funds or securities
of the City.

SECTION 6. The Notes shall be sold at not less than par plus accrued interest (if
any) at private sale by the Auditor in accordance with law and the provisions ofthis Ordinance,
the Certificate of Award and/or the Note Purchase Agreement (if any). The Auditor shall sign
the Certificate of Award referred to in Section 3 fixing the interest rate or rates which the Notes
shall bear and evidencing that sale to the original purchaser, cause the Not€s to be prepared,
and have the Notes signed and delivered, together with a true transcript of proceedings with
reference to the issuance of the Notes if requested by the original purchaser, to the original
purchaser upon payment ofthe purchase price.



To the extent it is determined necessary by the Auditor in the Certificate of Award, the Mayor
and the Auditor are authorized to sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the City, the note
purchase agreement (the "Note Purchase Agreement") between the City and the original purchaser, in a
form as is approved by the Mayor and the Auditor, providing for the sale to, and the purchase by, the
original purchaser of the Notes. Any such changes to the Note Purchase Agreement are not materially
adverse to the interests of the City and are approved by the Mayor and the Auditor shall be evidenced
conclusively by the signing ofthe Note Purchase Agreement by the Mayor and the Auditor.

The Mayor, the Auditor, the Director of Law, the Treasurer, the Clerk of Council and other City
officials, as appropriate, and any person serving in an interim or acting capacity for any such official,
each are authorized and directed to sign any transcript certificates, financial statements and other
documents and instruments and to take such actions as are necessary or appropriate to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Ordinance. Any actions heretofore taken by the Mayor, the Auditor,
the Director ofLaw, the Treasurer. the Clerk ofCouncil and other Cilv official, as appropriate, in doing
any and all acts necessary in connection with the issuance and sale ofthe Notes are hereby ratified and
confirmed. The Auditor is authorized, if it is determined to be in th€ best interest ofthe City, to combine
the issue ofNotes with one or more other note issues ofthe City into a consolidated note issue pursuant
to Section 133.30(B) ofthe Ohio Revised Code.

To the extent that the Auditor determines that it would be in the best interest of the City and
elects to utilize the Ohio Market Access Program (the "Ohio Market Access Program") which is
administered by the Treasurer of the State of Ohio (the "Treasurer"), the Mayor and the Auditor are

authorized to sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the City, the Standby Note Purchase
Agreement (the "Standby Note Purchase Agreement") in substantially the form as presented to this
Council with such changes as are not materially adverse to the City and as may be approved by the
officers of the City executing the Standby Note Purchase Agreement. The City acknowledges the
agreement ofthe Treasurer in the Standby Note Purchase Agreement that, in the event the City is unable
to repay the principal amount and accrued and unpaid interest of the Notes at their maturity, whether
through its own funds or through the issuance of other obligations of the City, the Treasurer agrees to
(a) purchase the Notes from the holders or beneficial owners thereof upon their presentation to the
Treasurer for such purchase at a price of par plus accrued interest to maturity or (b) purchase renewal
notes of the City in a principal amount not greater than the principal amount of the Notes plus interest
due at maturity, with such renewal notes bearing interest at the Renewal Note Rate (as defined in the
Standby Note Purchase Agreement), maturing not more than one year after the date of their issuance,
and being prepayable at any time with 30 days' notice, provided that in connection with the Treasurer's
purchase of such renewal notes the City shall deliver to the Treasurer an unqualified opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel that (i) such renewal notes are the legal, valid and binding general
obligations of the City, and the principal of and interest on such renewal notes, unless paid from other
sources, are to be paid from the proceeds ofthe lely ofad valorem ta-xes, within the ten-mill limitation
imposed by law, on all property subject to ad valorem taxes levied by the City and (ii) interest on the
renewal notes is excluded fiom gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the
Intemal Revenue Code, as amended, to the same extent that interest on the Notes is so excluded.

The officers signing the Notes are authorized to take all actions that may in their judgment
reasonably be necessary to provide for the Standby Note Purchase Agreement,



including but not limited to the inclusion of a notation on the form of the Notes
providing notice to the holders or beneficial owners of the existence of the Standby Note
Purchase Agreement and providing instructions to such holders or beneficial owners regarding
the presentation ofthe Note for purchase by the Treasurer at stated maturity.

SECTION 7. The proceeds fiom the sale of the Notes received by the City (or
withheld by the original purchaser or deposited with the Paying Agent, in each case on behalf
of the City) shall be paid into the proper fund or funds, and those proceeds are appropriated
and shall be used for the purpose for which the Notes are being issued. The Certificate of
Award and the Note Purchase Agreement (if any) may authorize the original purchaser to (a)
withhold certain proceeds fiom the sale ofthe Notes or (b) remit certain proceeds iiom the sale

ofthe Notes to the Paying Agent, in each case to provide for the payment ofcertain financing
costs on behalf of the City. If proceeds are remitted to the Paying Agent in accordance with
this Section 7, the Paying Agent shall be authorized to create a fund in accordance with the
Certificate ofAward for that purpose. Any portion ofthose proceeds received by the City (after
payment ofthose financing costs) representing premium or accrued interest shall be paid into
the Bond Retirement Fund.

SECTION 8. The City shall use reasonable efforts to sell and issue the Bonds or
renewal notes at such times, in such amounts and bearing interest at such rates, and containing
such additional provisions, as may be necessary to provide sufficient moneys to pay allthe debt
charges on the Notes when due after allowing for any other funds that may be lawfully available
and appropriated for that purpose. The par value to be received from the sale ofthe Bonds or
ofany renewal notes and any excess funds resulting from the issuance ofthe Notes shall, to the
extent necessary, be used to pay the debt charges on the Notes at maturity and arc pledged for
that purpose.

SECTION 9. During the year or years in which theNotes are outstanding, there shall
be levied on all the taxable property in the City, in addition to all other taxes, the same tax that
would have been levied ifthe Bonds had been issued without the prior issuance ofthe Notes.
The tax shall be within the ten-mill limitation imposed by law, shall be and is ordered
computed certified, levied and extended upon the tax duplicate and collected by the same

officers, in the same manner, and at the same time that taxes for general purposes for each of
those years are certified, levied, extended and collected, and shall be placed before and in
preference to all other items and for the full amount thereof. The proceeds ofthe tar levy shall
be placed in the Bond Retirement Fund, which is inevocably pledged for the payment ofthe
debt charges on the Notes or the Bonds when and as the same fall due.

ln each year to the extent receipts from the City's municipal income tax are available
for the payment of the debt charges on the Notes or the Bonds and are appropriated for that
purpose, the amount of the property tax described above shall be reduced by the amount of
such receipts so available and appropriated in compliance with the following covenant. To the
extent necessary, the debt charges on the Notes or the Bonds shall be paid ftom municipal
income taxes ofthe City lawfully available therefor underthe Constitution and laws ofthe State

of Ohio; and the City hereby covenants, subject and pursuant to such authority, including
panicularly Section 133.05(B)(7) ofthe Ohio Revised Code, to appropriate annually from such

municipal income taxes such amount as is necessary to meet such annual debt charges.



Nothing in the preceding paragraph in any way diminishes the irrevocable pledge ofthe full
faith and credit and general property taxing power ofthe City to the prompt payment ofthe debt charges
on the Notes or the Bonds.

SECTION 10. The City covenants that it will use, and will restrict the use and investment of,
the proceeds of the Notes in such manner and to such extent as may be necessary so that (a) the Notes
will not (i) constitute private activity bonds or arbitrage bonds under Sections l4l or 148 ofthe Intemal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") or (ii) be treated other than as bonds the interest on
which is excluded fiom gross income under Section 103 ofthe Code, and (b) the interest on the Notes
will not be an item of tax preference under Section 57 ofthe Code.

The City further covenants that (a) it will take or cause to be taken such actions that may be
required of it for the interest on the Notes to be and remain excluded fiom gross income for federal
income tax purposes, (b) it will not take or authorize to be taken any actions that would adversely affect
that exclusion, and (c) it, or persons acting for it, will, among other acts of compliance, (i) apply the
proceeds ofthe Notes to the govemmental purpose ofthe borrowing, (ii) restrict the yield on investment
property, (iii) make timely and adequate payments to the federal govemment, (iv) maintain books and
records and make calculations and reports and (v) refrain from certain uses of those proceeds, and, as
applicable, of property financed with such proceeds, all in such manner and to the extent necessary to
assure such exclusion ofthat interest under the Code.

The Auditor or any other officer of the City having responsibility for issuance of the Notes is
hereby authorized (a) to make or effect any election, selection, designation, choice, consent, approval,
or waiver on behalf of the City with respect to the Notes as the City is permitted to or required to make
or give under the federal income tax laws, including, without limitation thereto, any of the elections
available under Section 148 ofthe Code, for the purpose ofassuring, enhancing or protecting favorable
tax treatment or status ofthe Notes or interest thereon or assisting compliance with requirements for that
purpose, reducing the burden or expense of such compliance, reducing the rebate amount or payments
or penalties with respect to the Notes, or making payments of special amounts in lieu of making
computations to determine, or paying, excess earnings as rebat€, or obviating those amounts or payments
with respect to the Notes, which action shall be in writing and signed by the officer, (b) to take any and
all other actions, make or obtain calculations, mak€ payments, and make or give reports, covenants and
certifications ofand on behalfofthe City, as may be appropriate to assure the exclusion of interest from
gross income and the intended tax status ofthe Notes, and (c) to give one or more appropriate certificates
of the City, for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings for the Notes, setting forth the reasonable
expectations of the City regarding the amount and use of all the proceeds of the Notes, the facts,
circumstances and estimates on which they are based, and other facts and circumstances relevant to the
tax treatment of the interest on and the tax status ofthe Notes. The Auditor or any other officer ofthe
City having responsibility for issuance ofthe Notes is specifically authorized to designate the Notes as
"qualified tax-exempt obligations" if such designation is applicable and desirable, and to make any
related necessary representations and covenants.

SECTION I I . The Auditor is authorized to request a rating for the Notes fiom Moody's
Ratings or S&P Global Ratings, or both, as the Auditor determines is in the best interest of the City.
The expenditure ofthe amounts necessary to secure any such ratings as well as to pay the other financing
costs (as defined in Section 133.01 of the Ohio Revised Code)



in connection with the Notes is hereby authorized and approved and the amounts
necessary to pay those costs are hereby appropriated from the proceeds of the Notes. if
available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General Fund.

SECTION 12. The legal services ofthe law firm of Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP
are hereby retained. Those legal services shall be in the nature of legal advice and
recommendations as to the documents and the proceedings in connection with the
authorization, sale and issuance ofthe Notes and securities issued in renewal ofthe Notes and

rendering at delivery related legal opinions, all as set forth in the form of engagement letter
from that firm which is now on file in the office of the Clerk of Council. ln providing those
legal services, as an independent contractor and in an attomey-client relationship, that firm
shall not exercise any administrative discretion on behalf of this City in the formulation of
public policy, expenditure of public funds, enforcement of laws, rules and regulations of the
State of Ohio, any county or municipal corporation or of this City, or the execution of public
trusts. For those legal services, that firm shall be paid just and reasonable compensation and
shall be reimbursed for actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred in providing those legal
services. To the extent they are not paid or reimbursed pursuant to the Note Purchase

Agreement (if any) and/or the Certificate of Award, the Auditor is authorized and directed to
make appropriate certification as to the availability of funds for those fees and any
reimbursement and to issue an appropriate order for their timely payment as written statements

are submitted by that firm. The amounts necessary to pay those fees and any reimbursement
are hereby appropriated from the proceeds of the Notes, if available, and otherwise from
available moneys in the General Fund.

SECTION 13. The services of Bradley Payne, LLC, as municipal advisor, are hereby
retained. The municipal advisory services shall be in the nature of financial advice and

recommendations in connection with the issuance and sale ofthe Notes. ln rendering those
municipal advisory services, as an independent contractor, that firm shall not exercise any
administrative discretion on behalfofthe City in the formulation ofpublic policy, expenditure
ofpublic funds, enforcement of laws, rules and regulations ofthe State of Ohio, the City or any
other political subdivision, or the execution of public trusts. That firm shall be paid just and

reasonable compensation for those municipal advisory services and shall be reimbursed for the
actual out-of-pocket exp€nses it incurs in rendering those municipal advisory services. To the

lextent they are not paid or reimbursed pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement (ifany) and/or
the Certificate of Award, the Auditor is authorized and directed to make appropriate
certification as to the availability of funds for those fees and any reimbursement and to issue

an appropriate order for their timely paymenl as written statemenls are submifted by that firm.
The amounts necessary to pay those fees and any reimbursement are hereby appropriated liom
the proceeds of the Notes, if available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General
Fund.

SECTION 14. The Clerk ofCouncil is directed to promptly deliver a certified copy
ofthis Ordinance to the County Auditor ofFairfield County, Ohio.

SECTION 15. This Council determines that all acts and conditions necessary to be

done or perlormed by the City or to have been met precedent to and in the issuing ofthe Notes
in order to make them legal, valid and binding general obligations of the City have been
performed and have been met, or will at the time ofdelivery ofthe Notes have been performed
and have been met, in regular and due form as required by law; that the full faith and credit and
general property taxing power (as described in Section 9) ofthe City are pledged for the timely



payment ofthe debt charges on the Notesi and that no statutory or constitutional limitation of
indebtedness or taxation will have been exceeded in the issuance ofthe Notes.

SECTION 16. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council and
any of its committees conceming and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were taken in an open
meeting ofthis Council or any of its committees, and that all deliberations ofthis Council and ofany of
its committees that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance
with the law, including Section l2l .22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION 17. This Ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation ofthe public peace, health and safety ofthe City, and for the further reason that
this Ordinance is required to be immediately effective in order to issue and sell the Notes, which is
necessary to enable the City to facilitate the timely execution of one or more contracts relating to the
lmprovement; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage
and approval by the Mayor.

Passed 4-z/- Zb?.,s u*", reading Yeas Nays

Approved: Z ZS
Council

CI r\,/k 74
Mayor

Olfered

Second

Requested by Finance Committee

I, Anitra Scott, Clerk of Council do hereby certi! that on 2025 the
Lancaster Eagle Gazeue published the summary of this ordinance in accordance with Ohio Revised Code
731.24.

Clerk ofCouncil



TEMPORARY RESOLUTION NO. 29-25

PERMANENT RESOLUTION NO. 3 I-Z'
A RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE FROM THE LINENCUMBERED BALANCE
AND AMEND THE CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATIONS WITH THE COUNTY
AUDITOR IN THE TIMBERTOP TIF FUND (3060)

WHEREAS, the 2024 Timbertop TIF settlement monies carried over into 2025 and
need to be appropriated to meet tlte City's Timbertop TIF Fund commifnents; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY TT{E COUNCIL OF TI{E CIry OF LANCASTE& STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION l. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of
Appropriations with the County Auditor in the arnount of Seventy-Six Thousand One Hundred
Twenty-One Dollars and Forty-Three Cents ($76,121.43) in the Timbertop TIF Fund (3060).

SECTION 2. That the City of t ancaster Auditor appropriate fiom the unencumbered
balance in expense account 3060-96[0-52070 (Reimb Timbertop TIF) in the amount ofSeventy-
Six Thousand One Hundred Twenty-One Dollars and Forty-Tfuee Cents ($76,121 .43).

SECTION 3. That this resolution shall eke effect and be in force from and after the
earliest period allowed by law.

Passed: 4-Z l-Zozs ,*", readin Vote: Yeas NayS a
Date Approved Z

Council

0'n 7n
Mayor

Offered bv:

Second

Req nance Committee

3_

I



l00l .2250.5 1002, SalarieVStaff
1001.2250.51050, PERS
100 1.2250.5 1052, Health Ins.
I 00 1.2250.5 I 053, Medicare
I 00 1.2250.5 I 055, Workers Compensation

TOTAL

Vote: Yeas

TEMPORARY RESOLUTION NO. 37-25,

$ 26,683.20
$ 3,735.65

$ 16,611.20

$ 386.91
$ 587.03

$ 48,003.99

PERMANENT REsoluroN No..,-3425
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATIONS WITH
THE FAIRFIELD COUNTY AUDITOR AND APPROPRIATE FROM THE
UNENCUMBERED BALANCE TN THE GENERAL FTIND (IOOI), FOR THE
ADDITION OF T\\'0 O\E DEPUry CLERK POSITIONS WITHIN THE
MTNICIPAL CLERK'S OFFICE, AND TO DECLARE AN EMERCENCY

WHEREAS, due to new responsibilities being imposed by House Bill 29 which will
become effective on April 9, 2025, the Municipal Court Clerk is requesting a budget adjustsnent
to cover salary and benefis for errc{2J one (l) new Deputy Clerk, I positions for the remaining
sevenreer{*7) sixteen ( l6) pay periods in 2025; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COIjNCIL OF THE CITY OF LANCASTE& STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION 1. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of
Appropriations with the County Auditor for the General Fund (1001) in the amount of Or+e

Forty-Eight
Thousand and Three Dollars and Ninety-Nine Cents (M8,003.99).

SECTION 2. That the City of l,ancaster Auditor shall appropriate from the
unencumbered balance in the following expense accounts:

1001,2250,51055i Werkers €empensatien o '<<^^^

SECTION 3. That this resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety, and welfare of the
City and for the further reason that this resolution is nec€ssary to enable immediate hiring for the
new positions; wherefore, this resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its
adoption and approval by the Mayor.

,*,"0. tf'21'Zf uft", Z r"utr;r* Nav dS

Date Approved: 0n,rr.-l-Lt, zozs
of il



Clerk: //- u0-\
Mayor

Offered

Second bv:

Requested by Finance Committee



PERMANENT RE'O"'"'*'O..15-5
A RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE FROM THE UNENCUMBERED BALANCE,
AMEND THE CERTIFICATE WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR IN TTIE
CEMETERY FUND (2007), TO AUTHORIZE THE SERVICE-SAfETY DIRECTOR
TO PURCHASE A REPLACEMENT VEHICLE FOR USE BY THE CEMETERY
DEPARTMENT SUPERVISOR. AND TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, Selective lnsurance has classified the vehicle as a total loss and has

offered a settlement in the arnount ofNineteen Thousand Five Hundred Eighty-Seven Dollars and

Eighty Cents ($19,587.80), which the City has accepted; and

WHEREAS, a replacement vehicle is essential to depaffnent operations and this
expense was not anticipated nor budgeted for in the 2025 budget; and

WHEREAS, Lancaster Departrnent of Transportation (LDOT) has obtained a quote

fiom Hugh White Chevrolet to purchase a 2025 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 pick-up truck at a cost

ofForty-Five Thousand Four Hundred Eighty-Seven Dollars ($45,487.00); and

WHEREAS, the quote forthis vehicle will expire on May 3,20251now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLNCIL OF THE CITY OF LANCASTE& STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION l. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of
Appropriations with the County Auditor in the amount of Forty-Six Thousand Dollars
(M6,000.00) in the Cemetery Fund (2007).

SECTION 2. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall appropriate fiom the
unencumbered balance in expens€ account 2007.4200.56030 (Equipment - Cemetery) in the
amount of Forty-Six Thousand Dollars ($46,000.00).

SECTION 3. That the Service-Safety Director is hereby authorized to purchase a

replacement vehicle and equipment for use by the Cemetery Departnent Supervisor in an amount
not to exceed Forty-Six Thousand Dollars ($46,000.00).

SECTION 4. That this resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety, and welfare of the
City and for the further reason that this resolution is necessary to enable the City to purchase a

vehicle for use by the Cemetery Departrnent Supervisor to ensure continuous departrnental
operations; wherefore, this resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its
adoption and approval by the Mayor.

pu"""d, t/Zl'265 uft", I readine.vote:Yeas-!)-Navs- 4-
(rt,'), ,'l zl,zb?SDate Approved

TEMPORARY RESOLUTION NO. 44-25

WHEREAS, on March 27,2025, the Cemetery Supervisor's vehicle was involved in
an accident while the vehicle was parked at Piper's Sewice Center awaiting service; and



X---/
C

74
(

Mayor
Offered by:

Second by:

Requested by Public Works Committee

I



PIRMANLN I RLS( }LI IION N

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND PERMANENT RESOLUTION 70-22 AUTHORIZING
THE SERVICE.SAFEry DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN ENGINEERING
AGREEMENT FOR VARIOUS CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION AND
INSPECTION SERVICES DURINC THE NORTH WATER TREATMENT PLANT
REPLACEMENT PROJECT. AND TO INCREASE ESTIMATED RECEIPTS.
APPROPRIATE FROM THE UNENCUMBERED BALANCE, AND AMEND THE
CERTIFICATE OF OTHER SOURCES AND APPROPRIATIONS WITH THE
COUNTY AUDITOR IN THE WATER UTILIry RESERVE FUND (6027)

WHEREAS, Permanent Resolution 70-22 authorized a contract amount not to exceed
Six Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($6,500,000.00) for engineering construction
administration and inspection services on the North Water Treatrnent Plant (NWTP) Replacement
Project; and

WHEREAS, engineering construction administration and inspection costs for the
NWTP Replacement Project will exceed the original budget due to an increase in the scope of the
engineer's work to include the following: hiring an HVAC commissioning agenq providing
additional plant start-up assistance, providing additional programming services, supporting
development of the Miller Park landscaping plan, coordinating asset management information
related to the plant, handling additional submittals to the City Building Department, and
administering a large number of City-requested changes, as well as accounting for the potential
extension ofthe project schedule; and

WHEREAS, City Council's approval ofal engineering contract amendment for these

additional construction administration and inspection services is necessary for the City to
successfully complete tle construction of the NWTP; and

WHER-EAS, to ensure the City's engineering consultant can be paid through the end

ofthe projec! City Council is being asked to authorize the use ofup to Two Million Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) in additional funds; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF TI{E CIry OF LANCASTER, STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION 1. That Section I of Permanent Resolution 70-22 be amended to read as

follows:

*SECTION 
I . That the Service-Safety Director be and is hereby authorized to enter into

an engineering agreement and all necessaq/ contract amendments for a total amount not to exc€ed
Nine Million Dollars ($9,000,000.00) for all necessary construction administration and inspection
services for the NWTP Replacement Project."

SECTION 2. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of
Appropriations with the County Auditor in the amount of Two Million Five Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($2,500,000.00) in the Water Utility Reserve Fund (6027).

TEMPORARYRESOLUTIONNO, 33-25



SECTION 3. That the City of Lancaster Auditor increase estimated receipts in the amount of
Two Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) in rcvenue account 6027.0000.43024
(OWDA Reimb - Water Utility Reserve).

SECTION 4. That the City oft ancaster Auditor appropriate from the unencumbered balance rn
the amount of Two Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) in expense account
6027.0360.56003 (Miller/Water Works Improv).

SECTION 5. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force from passage and approval by
the Mayor.

Passed:

Date Approved (Y\a,trS
T

Clerk:

Offered bv

Second bv:

Requested ater Pollution Control Committee

3."uaing.
ZDLS

Vote: Yeas NayS

of ouncil

7n
Mayor



TEMPORARY RESOLUTION NO l5-25

PERMANENT RESOLUTION NO. ? -2s
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZINC THE SERVICE-SAFETY DIRECTOR TO
DISPENSE WITH COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND ENTER INTO A CONTRACT
WITH ROSENBAUER SOUTH DAKOTA, LLC FOR THE PURCHASE OF A2026
ROSENBAUER COMMANDER PUMPER TRUCK FOR USE BY THE
LANCASTER FIRE DEPARTMENT; TO APPROPRIATE FI.INDS: AND TO
DECLARE AN EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, Lancaster Fire Department (LFD) needs to purchase a new fire engine to
make a scheduled replacement ofthe current fiont-line apparatus; and

WHEREAS, this equipment is available through the Sourcewell Cooperative
Purchasing Program, which is a statutorily recognized exception to Ohio's competitive bidding
requirements and authorized by Lancaster City Council Permanent Resolution 7 -241 now,
therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CIry OF LANCASTER STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION l. That the Service-Safety Director is hereby authorized and directed to
dispense with competitive bidding and enter into a contract with Rosenbauer South Dakota LLC,
for the purchase of a 2026 Rosenbauer Commander pumper ruck tkough the Sourcewell
Cooperative Purchasing Program, for use by LFD, in an amount not to exc€ed Nine Hundred
Eighty-Five Thousand Dollars ($985,000.00).

SECTION 2. T\at the City of Lancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of
Appropriations with the County Auditor in the amount of Nine Hundred Eighty-Five Thousand

Dollars ($985,000.00) in the Fire Impact- District One Fund (3022).

SECTION 3. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall appropriate fiom the
unencumbered balance in the amount of Nine Hundred Eighty-Five Thousand Dollars
($985,000.00) in expense account 3022.927056050 (Yehicles - Fire [mpact).

SECTION 4. That this resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure
necessary for the immediate preservalion of the public peace, health, safety, and welfare of the
City and for the further reason that this resolution is necessary to enable timely purchase and
delivery of the needed equipment; wherefore, this resolution shall take effect and be in force
immediately upon its adoption and approval by the Mayor.

p^,"a,55 2_DZ5; 
^o",

3 nuaas.

Date Approved:

Vote: Yeas

CI

zo25
t ofC ncil

Nays 6q



t-4 A=n
Mayor

Offered bv:

Second by:

Requested by Safety rttee



35A3
3d-2sTEMPORARY RESOT,UTION NO

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TT{E SERVICE-SAFETY DIRECTOR TO
DISPENSE WITI] COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND ENTER INTO A CONTRACT
WITH ROSENBAUER SOUTH DAKOTA, LLC FOR THE PURCHASE OF A2026
ROSENBAUER COMMANDER PUMPER TRUCK FOR USE BY THE
LANCASTER FIRE DEPARTMENT, TO APPROPRIATE FI.INDS AND TO
DECLARE AN EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, Lancaster Fire Departrnent (LFD) would like to purchase a new fire
engine to replace a current fiont-line apparatusi and

WHEREAS, this equipment is available through the Sourcewell Cooperative
Purchasing Program, which is a statutorily recognized exception to Ohio's competitive bidding
requirements and authorized by lancaser City Council Permanent Resolution 7-24t now,
therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LANCASTE& STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION 3. That the City of t ancaster Auditor appropriate from the unencumbered
balance in the amount ofNine Hundred Eighty-Five Thousand Dollars ($985,000.00) in expense
acconnt 3022.927 0.56050 (Vehicles- Fire Impact).

SECTION 4. That this resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure

necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety, and welfare of the
City and for the further reason that this resolution is necessary to enable timely purchase and
delivery of the needed equipmenq wherefore, this resolution shall take effect and be in force
immediately upon its adoption and approval by the Mayor.

Passed: after _ reading. Vote: Yeas_ N

Date Approved:

Clerk:
President ofCouncil

tn

PERMANENT RESOLUTION NO.

SECTION l. That the Service-Safety Director be and is hereby authorized and

directed to dispense with competitive bidding and enter into a confact with Rosenbauer South
Dakot4 LLC, for the purchase of a 2026 Rosenbauer Commander pumper truck through the
Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Program, for use by LFD, in an amount not to exceed Nine
Hundred Eighty-Five Thousand Dollars ($985,000.00).

SECTTON 2. That the City of Lancaster Auditor amend the Certificate of
Appropriations with the County Auditor in the amount of Nine Hundred Eighty-Five Thousand

Dollars ($985,000.00) in the Fire lmpact- District One Fund (3022).

r



Mayor
Offered bv:

Second bv:
Requested by Safety Committee



REAUESTS ARE REAU]RED TO BE IN THE LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE BY NOON THE MONDAY PRIOR TO THE NErf COUNCIL
MEETING. THOSE REOUESTS RECEIVED AFTERTHE DEADLINE WILL NOT BE PROCESSED UNTIL THE NEXT MEETING.

WE NOWACCEPT EMAIL COPIESVERSUS ORIGINALS

REOUEST FOR PREPARATION OF LEGISLATI ON

I . DATE: April 1, 2025

RDINANCE Readings Requested;3

EMERGENCY

PLEASE CHECK BELOW BOXES A-H THAT APPLY: Make sure to include in box I below the

account(s)/fund name(s) and number(s) with your description.

ecrease/IncreaseApprop. B. y for grant funding

?

3

4

A.

D.

F.

G.

at€ a new Fund 

-985000

Appropriate from unencumbered balance in expen se account #

in the amount of $_,
in the amount of

& Amend the Certificate ofOther Sources and Appropriations w/ the County Auditor in

Out for bid/conuact .unount not to exceed $_ E.

ate from unencumbered balance in expen "e account # 3022-9270-56050 in the amount of

Estimated Receipts in revenue account #

$

Fund #-
- Explain below in Section I:

5. HAS AN APPROPRIATION BEEN MADE:

H.

I. DESCRIPTION: Account(s)/fund number(s) & name(s) must be listed for the above section. Description for
Iegislation. Pleasr'include language as to whr this legisiation is necessa4 and what it r"ill accomplish.
A resolution authorizing the service-safety director to dispense with competitive bidding and
enter into a contract with Rosenbauer to purchase a 2026 Rosenbauer Commander pumper
truck.

. See Attached

o

.tLL SI(i-\--tTl-REs \It-ST,IPPD tR llllLOrl- PRIOIt 1'() SIB]IISSIOvl'O THli
l.fll DIRE('T()R'S ()]'1'ICE Ir()It lrltlrl'-tllt'fl()\. Telephone appnoval occepted Eith
rrotf,tiou rmrked belorv. Fonns submitteed rvithout g[ signatures will not be proeessed and
r+turued to departmtrnt to olrtain those signohrres.
Person completing this form

Committee Sponsoring & Council Person Sponsoring

Service-Safety Director Approval

Auditor Approval of above language

Fire Chief Slade Schultz

S

Safety: Joe Bizjak

fZnrsolurroN
E*r E*o

C. lhen & Now Resolution

& Arnend the Cenificate of Appropriations w/ the Counry Auditor in Fund # 3022

nn"r""r"

l-lo,r'".



Martens, Liz

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Schultz, Slade
Wednesday, April 2, 2025 7:48 AM
Council Clerk; Hall, Stephanie; Harden, Mitch; Martens, Liz; McDaniel, Don; Nettles,
Tricia; Porter, Jeff; Stoughton, Tom; Wolfinger, Robert; Woody, Carrie
Bizja( Joe; Tener, Becky; Sollie, Thomas
Legislation request to purchase a fire engine
2025 Rosenbauer Legislation.pdf; TR 44-10.pdf; Updated Rosenbauer Purchase
Order.pdf

Lancaster Fire is ready to move forward with the purchase of a new fire engine to reptace a front-tine apparatus.
After doing our due-ditigence we have chosen Rosenbauer as the manufacturer. This tegistation is to purchase in
futl from fire impact funds to get a discounted price of $985,000. The attachment is a resotution to purchase a

medic, for comparabte tanguage purposes on[y. Three readings is fine. lf there are any questions, ptease let me
know.

Respectf utty submitted,

Slade Schultz, OFE, OFC

Fire Chief
Lancaster Fire Department
1596 E. Main St.

Lancaster, Ohio 43130
(740)687-6640 ext 4315
(740)438-4440

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use,

disclosure or distribution is prohibited. lf you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by
reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message.

1

Att,



Sorrrcewell t

PURCHASE ORDER

Purchaser SUPPLIER
Lancasler Fira Sourcot,/oll Contrrcl *: 113021 D

1596 E. 
^4aln 

St Rosenbauer Solth Dakota. LLC

100 3rd St oot
43130

57041Lyons.

-ffiIFEtIllli?Ert
IIr T,]?'!?T[
E6E!!f,iI!

-

IiEit'ltll

-rttilrr

-

I_t?E]?iltI

ln Cabnd.. Oata,

124580Date:

-w-Tho !h.[ ramain frfi lo. e of 30 Lom the dat8 ot sano.

NOTES:

lnclud€d ln the above p.icing is a ta.iff surcha.gg ln the amount of $60,510.00. lf tho tadffs are rBclndod or r€duced you will got up

to the surdr.rge amoont list6d rBtunded to you.

Roaenbauar Doaler : AlLAmerican Fire Eauiomont

Srlo!Derson: chat6&nen fli
Signrura: /ffi*/ b/,--^'---

PurchaSaa: Lancastea Fte Deot.

Prlnt Nam6:

Thlei

Dato

Siqmlur!:

Price Prlco (Extondod)Oa!crlptlon

$1,030,450.00 $1,030,450.00

os!!I-
1

One ('l) Rosenbauor Pumpgr, complet€ with Ros€nbausr Commander chessis por

attached speclfr catons.

lf I 100% payment Is mad€ wlhln 10 dayE ot slgnlng fle PO d€ducl $47,790.00 from the abov6 pricing. To ensure a 915-26 completlon date at the
facto.y ths PO must be signod no l8t6r than t15-25

$1,030,450,00TOTAL

-
-

-
-

Add,'tar 2i
Cllv. Strts- Zlo:

LI

I



Martens, Liz

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Hall, Stephanie
Tuesday, April 1, 2025 4:54 PM

McDaniel, Don

Martens, Liz

RE: New Firetruck Legislation: *Update.

Greot. Since they ore o port of o joint cooperotive purchosing progrom we porticipote in,
we con dispense with competitive bidding. I'll moke the legislotion reflect this. Thonks.

I,ANCASTER

Stephonle L Hol
Low Dlrector & Clly Proreculor
Cily of Loncoster
Lqw Director & Proseculor's office
136 wesi lvloin Slreel

Loncosler, Ohio 43130

(?) 7&67 6616 exl. fil6
slholl@ci.loncoster.oh.Lrs

www.ci.loncosler.oh.us/LowDireclor

Confrdenrio/ity Norice Ihis e-moilmessoge is inlended by the Low Director's Office for use on/y by ihe
indNiduol or entity to which il is oddressed. Ihis messoge moy contoin informotion thot is privileged ondlor
confidentiol. ,l 6 nol iniended for tronsmrssion to, or receipt by, onyone other thon the nomed oddressee lor o
person outhorized lo receive ond deliver it to the nomed oddressee/. lf you hove received lhis lronsmission in
enor, pleose delete it from your syslem without copying, printing, or forwording it, ond nollty the sender of ,he
enor by reply e-moil or by colling (710) 687-6616. Thonk you!

From: McDaniel, Don <dmcda niel@ci.la ncaster.oh.us>
Sent: Tuesday, April 1, 2025 4:52 PM

To: Hall, Stephanie <slhall@ci.lancaster.oh.us>

Subject: Fwd: New Firetruck Legislation: +Updatet

From Chief Schuttz

We do not have to go to competitive bidding, Rosenbauer is part of Sourcewett, Contract#: 1 13021 -RSD

I didn't reatty know much about them untitTrish mentioned Sourcewell in passing today and I did a tittte
research.h_ttps:/1m n.sourcewetLo rglcooperative-pu!'eha si ng

Slade Schultz, OFE, OFC

Fire Chief
Lancaster Fire Department
1596 E. Main St.

Lancaster Ohio 43130
(740)687-6640 ext 4315
(7401438-4440

I

1

Sent f rom my iPhone



Begin forwarded message:

From: "Schultz, Stade" <ssciut_U@eLlaneaster.oh.us>
Date: Aprit 1,2025 al3:50:30 PM EDT

To: "McDaniet, Don" <dmcdaniet@ci.tancaster.oh.us>
Subject: Re: New Firetruck Legistation: *Update*

We do not have to go to competitive bidding, Rosenbauer is part of Sourcewetl, Contract#:
RSD.

I didn't reatty know much about them until Trish mentioned Sourcewetl in passing today an
tittte research. https://mn.sourcewett.org/cooperative-purchasing

Slade Schu ltz, OFE, OFC

Fire Chief

Lancaster Fire Department

1596 E. Main St.

La ncaster, Ohio 43130

(740)687-6640 ext 4315

(7401438-4440

1 13021-

I did a

2



TEMPORARY RESOLUTION NO. 44.10

PERMANENT RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION AUTTIORZING TI{E SERVICE-SAFETY DIRECTOR TO
DISPENSE WITI{ COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND ENTER INTO A CONTRACT
W]TH HORTON EMERGENCY VEHICLES FOR THE PURCHASE OF AN
EMERGENCY MEDICAL VEHICLE FOR USE BY TTIE FIRE DEPARTMENT,
AND APPROPRIATE FT]NDS

WHEREAS, the State Cmperative Purchasing hogram provides the opportunity
for municipalities to participate in contacts of the State of Ohio for the purchase of
equipment machinery, material, supplies, or other articles, an{,

BE IT RESOLVED BY COUNCIL OF TI{E CITY OF LANCASTE& STATE OF
OHIO

SECTION l. That the Service-Safety Director be and is hereby authorized and
directed to dispense with competitive bidding and enter into a contract with Horton
Emergency Vehicles, for the purchase of an emergency medical vehicle, from the Staie
Cooperative Purchasing Program, for use by the fue department, in an anount not to exceed
Two Hundred Tcn Thousand Dollars ($210,000.00).

SECTION 2. That from the money now on hand and estimated to come into the
Improvement Fund Project .15 Firc Levy Carry4ver, there be and hereby is appmpriated the
sum of Two Hundrpd Ten Thousand Dollars ($210,000.00), into Account Number
317.066.5601, for the purpose of purchasing an emergency medical vehicle for the Fire
Departrnent.

SBCTION 3. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force fiom and after the
earliest period allowed by law.

Passed: after 

- 

reading, Vote: Yeas_ Nays_
Date Approved

President of Council
Clerk:

Mayor
Offered by

Second by:-

Requested by Safety Committee



A RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE FROM THE UNENCUMBERED BALANCE,
AMEND TTIE CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATIONS WITH TI{E COUNTY
AUDITOR IN THE GENERAL FUND (IOOI) TO REIMBURSE TT{E LANCASTER
PORT AUTHORITY FOR PAYING ITS PROPORTIONAL ST{ARE FOR THE
FAIRFIELD COUNry HOUSING STUDY

WHEREAS, Fairfield County has commissioned a housing study to analyze the
present and future housing needs in the unincorporated areas of the County and has offered to
include the City of l,ancaster in that study in exchange for financial supporq and

WHEREAS, the City and Lancaster Port Authority's proportionate share ofthe study

is Twenty Thousand Dollars, and due to the timing ofthe contract, the Lancaster Port Authoriry
has already paid the requested sum in anticipation of reimbursement for halfthat amount, or Ten
Thousand Dollars ($ 10,000.00) fiom the City; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CIry OF LANCASTER. STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION l. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of
Appropriations with the County Auditor in the General Fund (1001) in the amount of Ten

fi ousand Dollars ($ I 0,000.00).

SECTION 2. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall appropriate from the

unencumbered balance in expense account l00l .8040.52034 (Contractual Services - Economic
Development) in the amount ofTen Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00).

SECTION 3. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the

earliest period allowed by law.

?ZDZS 
^x*5 reading. Vote:P

ZD75Date Approved:

Clerk:
of it

0'71 r1- ru
Mayor

byOffered

nd bySeco

Requested by Committee

TEMPORARYRESOLUTIONNO. 36-25

PERMANENT RE'O"''O* *O. .J9-5

Nuy, /

I



TEMPORARY RESOLUTION NO. 39-25

4 t-zsPERMANENT RESOLUTION NO

A RESOLUTION TO INCREASE RECEIPTS, APPROPRIATE FLNDS IN THE
WASTEWATER RESERVE FUND (6029), AMEND TT{E CERTIFICATE OF
OTI{ER SOURCES AND APPROPRIATIONS WITI{ TTIE COUNTY AUDITOR,
AND AUTHORIZE PAYMENT OF BILLS WITH THEN AND NOW
CERTIFICATES FOR THE OHIO WATER DEVELOPMENT LOAN FOR THE
SOLIDS }IANDLING FACILITY UPGRADE PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City of Lancaster is entering into a loan agreement with the Ohio
Water Development Authority (OWDA) for the construction of the Solids Handling Facility
Upgrade on Lawrence Street; and

WHEREAS, funds received from the OWDA loan will need to be appropriated within
the Wastewater Reserve Fund (6029) in order to reimburse that fund for payments made to the
Engineer and the Contractor in 2025 for audit purposes; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CIry OF LANCASTE& STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION l. That tlre City of Lancaster Auditor shall amend the Certifrcate of Other
Sources and Appropriations with the County Auditor in the amount of Eleven Million Three
Hundred Nineteen Thousand Four Hundred Dollars ($l 1,319,400.00) in the Wastewater Revenue
Fund (6029).

SECTION 2. That the City of Lancaster Auditor appropriate fiom the unencumbered
balance in the following expense accounts:

6029.0920.56004, Lawrence St WPCF
6029.0940.56021, OWDAReimbursement

Total

$ 1,279.400.00
s 10.040.000.00

$1rJ19,400.00

SECTION 3. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall increase receipts in revenue
account 6029.0000.43024 (OWDA Reimb - Waste Water Utility Reserve) in the amount of
Eleven Million Three Hundred Nineteen Thousand Four Hundred Dollars ($ I I,3 19,400.00)

SECTION 4. That City Council hereby authorizes the issuance of Then and Now
Certificates for purchase orders for contracts covered by the OWDA loan to accommodate
reimbursement payments fiom the loan to pay invoices on those contracts.

SECTION 5. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force fiom ard after the
earliest period allowed by law.

p**d, 5' )g'M^ft"r3 ,."ding.yote:yex-LlO **" A



Date Approved: Z5
ofCouncil

C 7n
Mayor

Offered bv:

Second

R"q ater Pollution Control Committee

L---4 I



TEMPORARYRESOLUT]ONNO. 40-25

4z-PERMANENT RESOLUTION NO

A RESOLUTION TO TNCREASE RECEIPTS, APPROPRIATE FLNDS IN TI{E
STORMWATER UTILITY RESERVE FUND (6019), AMEND THE CERTIFICATE
OF OTHER SOURCES AND APPROPRIATIONS WITH THE COUNry AUDITO&
AND AUTIIORIZE PAYMENT OF BILLS WITH TFIEN AND NOW
CERTIFICATES FOR TTIE OHIO WATER DEVELOPMENTLOAN FOR THE EAST
MAIN STREET SEWER SEPARATION PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City of Lancaster is entering into a loan agr€ement with the ohio
Water Development Authority (OWDA) for the construction of the East Main Street Sewer
Separation hoject; and

WHEREAS, funds received fiom the OWDA loan will need to be appropriated within
the Stormwater Utility Reserve Fund (6019) in order to reimburse that fund for pa),rnents made to
the Engineer and the Contractor in 2025 for audit purposes; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY TT{E COUNCIL OF THE CIry OF LANCASTER, STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION I . That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of Other
Sources and Appropriations with the County Auditor in the amount of Three Million One Hundred
Eighty-Three Thousand One Hundred Ninety-Nine Dollars ($3,183,199.00) in the Stormwater
Repair and lmprovement Fund (6019).

SECTION 2. That tlre City of Lancaster Auditor shall appropriate from the
unencumbered balance in the following expense accounts:

6019.M50.56006 CombinedSewerProjecs
6019.0450.56021 OWDAReimbursement

Total

$ 679.375.00
$2.503.824.00
$3,183,I99.00

SECTION 3. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall increase receipts in revenue

account 6019.0450.43024 (OWDA Reimbursement - Stormwater) in the amount of Three Million
One Hundred Eighty-Three Thousand One Hundred Ninety-Nine Dollars ($3,183,199.00).

SECTION 4. That City Council hereby authorizes the issuance of Then and Now
Certificates for purchase orders for contracts covered by the OWDA loan to accommodate

reimbursement payrnents from the loan to pay invoices on those contacts.

SECTION 5. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force fiom and after the
earliest period allowed by law.

Passed: 5- tQ-zoz;^nn 3 ,"^rrr.vot"' y"". / O Nuy. d



Date Approved: Z5

Offered bv

Second bv:

Requested by WaterA ater Pollution Control Committee

of il
C -n

Mayor



4S-zPERMANENT RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATIONS WITH
THE COUNTY AUDITOR, APPROPRIATE FROM THE UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE, INCREASE RECEIPTS, COMPLETE A FUND TRANSFER N THE
CDBG LOAN REPAY REVOLVING ACCOUNT FUND (2075) AND IN THE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK CRANT FUND (2073) AND DECLARE
AN EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, the City of Lancaster Community Development Depadnent has been

notified by the U.S. Depaffnent of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) that they must spend
program income before spending grant funds on projecs and other allowable expenses; and

WHEREAS, funds need to be transferred from the CDBG tnan Repay Revolving
Account Fund (2075) to the Community Development Block Grant Fund (2073) in order to utilize
funds for current and upcoming projects; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLINCIL OF THE CITY OF LANCASTER STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION l. That $e City of Lancaster Auditor shall appropriate fiom the
unencumbered balance in the CDBG loan Repay Revolving Account Fund (2075) in expense

account 2075.8010.59046 (Transfers - Community Development) in the amount of Twenty-Five
Thousand Dollars (S25,000.00).

SECTION 2. That the City of l-ancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of
Appropriations with the County Auditor in the amount of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars
($25,000.00) in the CDBG Loan Repay Revolving Account Fund (2075).

SECTION 3. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall complete a Fund-to-Fund
tansfer fiom expense account 2075.8010.59046 (Transfer - Community Development) to
revenue account 2073.8010.43001 (Fed Grant (projecs) - Comm Dev Bl Gt) in the amount of
Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00).

SECTION 4. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of Other
Sources and Appropriations with the County Auditor in the amount of Twenty-Five Thousand
Dollars ($25,000.00) in the Community Development Block Grant Fund (2073).

SECTION 5. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall increase receipts in the revenue
account 2073.8010.43001 (Fed Grant (projects) - Comm Dev Bl Gt) in the amount of Twenty-
Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00).

SECTION 6. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall appropriate flom the
unencumbered balance in the amount ofTwenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) in expense
account 2073.8010.56090 (Fed Grant (projects) - Comm Dev Bl Ct).

SECTION 7. That this resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure
necessaD/ for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety, and welfare of the
City and for the further reason that this resolution is necessary to enable funds to be transferred

TEMPORARY RESOLUTION NO. 43.25



and accessed in a timely manner in order to utilize funds for ongoing community development
projecs and expenses; wherefore, this resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its
adoption and approval by the Mayor.

pu.,"a,t5ll q lzozs"n"J .""airg. vote: Yeas cNays

Date

of
CI

Offered

Second bv:

Requested by Economic Development Committee

7ntrl
Mayor

/



4to-zSPERMANENT RESOLUTION NO

A RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE FROM THE UNENCUMBERED BALANCE
IN THE GENERAL FUND (IOO1), INCREASE RECEIPTS, APPROPRIATE FROM
Tt{E UNENCUMBERED BALANCE IN TTTE HEAITH INSURANCE
MANAGEMENT FUND (7022) AND AMEND THE CERTIFICATE OF
APPROPRIATIONS WITH THE COUNry AUDITOR

WHEREAS, this appropriation request is to pay for old, self-insured life policies that
were in old prior collective bargaining agreements; and

WHEREAS, the original 2025 budget that was set is insufficient to pay for incoming
2025 life insurance claims. Additional monies need to be appropriated to cover current claims ald
up to three more claims; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY COLINCIL OF TI{E CITY OF LANCASTE& STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION l. That the City of Lancaster Auditor amend the Certificate of
Appropriations with the County Auditor in the amount ofEleven Thousand Dollars ($11,000.00)
in the General Fund (1001).

SECTION 2. That the City of Lancaster Auditor appropriate fiom the unencumbered
balance in expense account l00l .9900.59032 (Trans/Fund 7022 Life Ins Prior) in the amount of
Eleven Thousard Dollars ($l 1,000.00).

SECTION 3. That the City of Lancaster Auditor amend the Certificate of Other
Sources and Appropriations with the County Auditor in the amount ofEleven Thousand Dollars
($l 1,000.00) in the Health Insurance Management Fund (7022).

SECTION 4. That the Lancaster City Auditor increase receipts in revenue account
'7022.0000.49086 (Transfers/General Fund) in the amount of Eleven Thousand Dollars
:($l 1,000.00).

SECTION 5. That the City of l,ancaster Auditor appropriate from the unencumbered
balance in expense account 7022.1870.52045 (Retired Life Prior 04) in the arnount of Eleven
Thousand Dollars ($l I ,000.00).

SECTION 6. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the
earliest period allowed by law.

prt 
"d,5- lq- ZO2,5 after 5 ."uding. vot", y"u. /O N

Date Approved: rYnv /qzozs
ofC it

fT
Clerk:

-f f

Mayor
/ln

d

TEMPORARYRESOLUTIONNO. 45-25



Offered bv:

Second bv:

Requested by Administrative Services Committee



TEMPORARY RESOLUTION NO. 47.25

47-25PERMANENT RESOLUTION NO

A RESOLUTION TO INCREASE RECEIPTS. APPROPRIATE FROM THE
UNENCUMBERED BALANCE AND AMEND THE CERTIFICATE OF OTHER
SOURCES AND APPROPRIATIONS WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR IN THE
TIMBERTOP TIF FUND (3060)

WHEREAS, the 2025 Timberrop TIF seftlement monies happened to be more than the
Ciq anticipated receiving from the Countyl and

WHEREAS, for that reason, the City needs to increase the 2025 revenue and

appropriation budgets in order to process the TIF paymentsi now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CIry OF LANCASTER, STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION l. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of Other
Sources and Appropriations with the County Auditor in the amount of One Hundred Fifty-Three

lThousand Four Hundred Eighty-Two Dollars and Forty-One Cents ($153,482.41) in the

Timbertop TIF Fund (3060).

SECTION 2. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall increase receips in revenue

account 3060.0000.41028 (TIF Net Service Payments) in the amount ofOne Hundred Fifty-Three
Thousand Four Hundred Eighty-Two Dollars and Forty-One Cens (S153,482.41).

SECTION 3. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall appropriate from the

unencumbered balance in expense account 3060.9610.52070 (Reimb Timbertop TIF) in the

amount ofOne Hundred Fifty-Three Thousand Four Hundred Eighty-Two Dollars and Forty-One
Cens ($ 153,482.41).

SECTION 4. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force fiom and after the
earliest period allowed by law.

p*r"a, 5' /9'ZDZS aftr, 2 readins.vote:Yet--L/ iD
Date Approved: ZDZS

N

ofCouncl
Clerk

by

Second bv:

+74

uested ce Committee

Mayor

I



PERMANENT RESOLUTION NO. 52- Z5
A RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE FROM THE UNENCUMBERED BALANCE
IN THE .45 POLICE & FIRE LEVY 2O2I FUND (205I), TO AMEND THE
CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATIONS WITH THE FAIRFIELD COUNTY
AUDITOR, AND TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, a budget adjustrnent is necessary to cover costs of construction for the
maintenance and storage facility for the l,ancaster Fire Department (LFD); and

WHEREAS, the engineer's estimate for this project was Six Hundred Sixty-Three
Thousand Four Hundred Seventy Dollars and Fifty-Six Cents ($663,470.56) and the City received
one bid for Five Hundred Ninety-Nine Thousand Dollars ($599,000.000); and

WHEREAS, Temporary Resolution 52-25 will authorize the Service-Safety Director
to enter into a contract for construction in an amount not to exceed Six Hundred Sixty Thousand

Dollars ($660,000.00) to account for contingencies; and

WHEREAS, only Three Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars ($360,000.00) was

appropriated for this project in the 2025 budgel now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLTNCIL OF THE CIry OF LANCASTER, STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION l. That the City of l,ancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of
Appropriations with the County Auditor for the .45 Police & Firey l*rry 2021 Fund (2051) in the

amount of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00).

SECTION Z. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall appropriate from the

unencumbered balance in exp€nse account 2051.3500.56010 (Building - Fire) in the amount of
Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00).

SECTION 3. That this resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure

necessa4/ for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety, and welfare of the
City and for the further reason that funds must be appropriated in order to allow construction to
proceed in a timely manner; wherefore, this resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately
upon its adoption and approval by the Mayor.

Passed \-Q-ZDL5 ^r*
40
Z- reading. Vote: Yeas /

Z5
Nays

Date Approved:

C)ffered

Second by:
Requested

side ncil
C

Fi Committee

TEMPORARY RESOLUTION NO. 53-25



TEMPORARY RESOLUTION NO. 49-25

6'zsPERMANENT RESOI,I ]TION NO

A RESOLUTION TO INCREASE RECEIPTS, APPROPRIATE FROM THE
UNENCUMBERED BALANCE. AMEND THE CERTIFICATE OF OTHER
SOURCES AND APPROPRIATIONS WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR IN TT{E
GENERAL FLND (IOOI) FOR THE ONE TIME STRATEGTC COMMUNITY
INVESTMENTS GRANT PROGRAM. AND TO DECLARE AN EMERCENCY

WHEREAS, the City of Lancaster was awarded One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars
($150,000.00) in House Bill 2 One Time Strategic Community Investments Grant Program funds
to support the cost ofrestoration to the historic bell and clock in the City Hall tower; and

WHEREAS, a submission for a release of the One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars
($150,000.00) was submitted to the Office of Management and Budgets on May 7, 2025; now,
therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CIry OF LANCASTER STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION I . That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of Other
Sources and Appropriations with the County Auditor in the amount of One Hundred Fifty
Thousand Dollars ($150,000.00) in the General Fund ( l00l ).

SECTION 2. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall increase receipts in revenue

account 1001.0000.43010 (State Grants) in the amount ofOne Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars
(sl so,ooo.oo).

SECTION 3. That the City of L,ancaster Auditor shall appropriate from the
unencumbered balance in expense account 1001.1450.56020 (lmprovements - City Hall) in the
amount ofOne Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000.00).

SECTION 4. That this resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety, and welfare ofthe
City and for the further reason that this resolution is necessary to enable the City to receive and

utilize these grant funds upon approval ofthe funding request; wherefore, this resolution shalltake
effect and be in force immediately upon its adoption and approval by the Mayor.

Passed: b-23-2q25 
^o",

3 reading Vote: Yeas Nays d
Date Approved

cil
CI

n
Offered bv:

Second by
Requested

2q<.H (

by Finance Comm

Mayor

of

nl,*,/



TEMPORARY RESOLUTION NO. 56-25

PERMANENT RESOLUTION N O. 5N-25
A RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE FROM THE LINENCUMBERED BALANCE
AND AMEND THE CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATIONS WITH TTIE COUNTY
AUDITOR IN THE STORM WATER FUND (6006) FOR pAyI,lENT OF
COMPENSATORY TIME

WHEREAS, the 2025 budget for the Storm Water Fund (6006) needs to be adjusted
to address an oversight in the amount that was budgeted for the payment of comp time (i.e.
overtime) hours; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY TT{E COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LANCASTER, STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION l. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall amend the Certificate of
Appropriations with the County Auditor in the Storm Water Fund (6006) in the amount of Two
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00).

SECTION 2. That the City of Lancaster Auditor shall appropriate from the

unencumbered balance in expense account 6006.6400.51003 (Overtime) in the amount of Two
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (S2,500.00).

SECTION 3. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force fiom and after the

earliest period allowed by law.

p*,"6.11-23- ?DZS uft", 2 ,"ading.Vote: Yeas I Nays

ouncil
Clerk: rh 7h

Mayor
C)ffered bv:

Second bv:

Requested by: ater Pollution Control Committee

)

o*, appron 
"a, 

{on e ?3, ZW



AMENDED OFFICIAL CERTIFICATE NO. 3 Fiscal Year: 2025

OFFICIAL CERTIFICATE OF ESTIMATED RESOURCES
 

REVISED CODE SECTION 5705.36

County Auditor's Office, Fairfield County, Ohio Date: 07/14/25

Fiscal Year: 2025
Taxing Authority: Village Of Carroll
Submitted By: Crystal Roberts

The following is the "Official Certificate of Estimated Resources" for the fiscal year beginning fiscal year 2025 as 
revised by the Budget Commission of Fairfield County, which shall govern the total of appropriations made at any 
time during the fiscal year:

Funds Unencumbered
Balance Taxes Rollbacks & Other 

Sources Total
General Fund $1,019,617.59 $24,500.00 $488,000.00 $1,532,117.59

Special Revenue Fund $164,481.79 $0.00 $6,129,946.00 $6,294,427.79
Enterprise Fund $162,107.01 $0.00 $408,877.91 $570,984.92

Total All Funds $1,346,206.39 $24,500.00 $7,026,823.91 $8,397,530.30

Mary E. Dawson Treasurer
Village Of Carroll
Box 367
Carroll,Ohio,43112

Budget Commission:





Fiscal Year: 2025
Certificate Submission

County Auditor's Office, Fairfield County, Ohio Date: 07/14/25

Fiscal Year: 2025
Taxing Authority: Village Of Carroll
Submitted By: Crystal Roberts

Fund
Prev. Years
Est. Ending

Cash Bal
Advances

Est.
Carryover

Encumbrances

Start of
Year Est.

Unencumbered
Bal

Est.
Taxes

Est.
Rollbacks

Other
Taxes

Est.
Other

Sources

Total
Est.

Receipts

Total
Available

Source

Approp.
Budget

Unappropriated
Balance Warning

General Fund

1000 General 
Fund

$1,019,617.59 $0.00 $0.00 $1,019,617.59 $24,500.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $485,000.00 $512,500.00 $1,532,117.59 $1,051,42
2.48 $480,695.11

Special Revenue Fund

2011 - Street 
Fund

$110,438.04 $0.00 $0.00 $110,438.04 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $170,438.04 $170,438.
04 $0.00

2051 - Federal 
Grants

$1,367.69 $0.00 $0.00 $1,367.69 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,367.69 $1,367.69 $0.00

2081 - Drug 
Law 

Enforcement

$1,514.64 $0.00 $0.00 $1,514.64 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,514.64 $1,514.60 $0.04

2101 - MV 
Permissive 
Tax Fund

$36,796.80 $0.00 $0.00 $36,796.80 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,500.00 $11,500.00 $48,296.80 $48,296.8
2 -$0.02 EXCEEDS

2151-CDBG 
Grant Fund

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750,000.00 $750,000.00 $750,000.00 $0.00 $750,000.00

2152-
American 

Rescue Act

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,304,146.00 $3,304,146.00 $3,304,146.00 $0.00 $3,304,146.00



2153-OWDA 
OSG Grant

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00 $1,000,000.00 $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00

2154-OWDA 
H2O Grant

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00 $1,000,000.00 $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00

2271 - 
Enforcement 
& Education

$3,408.88 $0.00 $0.00 $3,408.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,700.00 $2,700.00 $6,108.88 $6,108.88 $0.00

2901 - Mayor's 
Court 

Computer 
Fund

$10,955.74 $0.00 $0.00 $10,955.74 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $12,555.74 $12,555.7
4 $0.00

Enterprise Fund

5101 - Water 
Fund

$63,592.52 $0.00 $0.00 $63,592.52 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $174,000.00 $174,000.00 $237,592.52 $237,592.
52 $0.00

5201 - Sewer 
Fund

$89,959.06 $0.00 $0.00 $89,959.06 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $234,600.00 $234,600.00 $324,559.06 $324,559.
06 $0.00

5601 - 
Capacity 

Charge / New 
on Line

$328.36 $0.00 $0.00 $328.36 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $277.91 $277.91 $606.27 $606.27 $0.00

5781 - Utilities 
Deposit Fund

$7,552.07 $0.00 $0.00 $7,552.07 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,552.07 $7,552.07 $0.00

5902 - 
Replacement 

& 
Improvement 

(Sewer)

$675.00 $0.00 $0.00 $675.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $675.00 $675.00 $0.00

Total All 
Funds $1,346,206.39 $0.00 $0.00 $1,346,206.39 $24,500.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $7,023,823.91 $7,051,323.91 $8,397,530.30 $1,862,68

9.17 $6,534,841.13 EXCEEDS































































































































Carroll
Account #
11317

EPA #
H2Ohio

Purpose
Sewer

Project
Sanitary Sewer Improvements Phase III

First
Payment

Last
Payment

Strategic Initiatives - H2Ohio Round 5 - 2024

Grant $1,000,000.00 $0.00 *None 0 12/30/1899 12/30/1899 Active Repaid Approved Funded

Totals: $1,000,000.00 $0.00

Type
↑↓ Amount

Financed
↑↓ Current

Balance
↑↓

Rate
↑↓

Term
↑↓ Disbursement

Status
↑↓ Repayment

Status
↑↓ Application

Status
↑↓ Funded

Status

 Contractor Information

A $915,705.63 $0.00 $0.00 $915,705.63

PL $84,294.37 $0.00 $84,294.37 $0.00

Totals: $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $84,294.37 $915,705.63

Contractor ID
↑↓

Encumbered Amount
↑↓

Contingency Amount
↑↓

Disbursed Amount
↑↓ Undisbursed Balance

Amount
↑↓

https://loans.owda.org/contractordetail.html?AccountID=11317&DetailID=A
https://loans.owda.org/contractordetail.html?AccountID=11317&DetailID=PL


AMENDED OFFICIAL CERTIFICATE NO. 4 Fiscal Year: 2025

OFFICIAL CERTIFICATE OF ESTIMATED RESOURCES
 

REVISED CODE SECTION 5705.36

County Auditor's Office, Fairfield County, Ohio Date: 07/14/25

Fiscal Year: 2025
Taxing Authority: Village Of Lithopolis
Submitted By: Jacinta Flowers

The following is the "Official Certificate of Estimated Resources" for the fiscal year beginning fiscal year 2025 as 
revised by the Budget Commission of Fairfield County, which shall govern the total of appropriations made at any 
time during the fiscal year:

Funds Unencumbered
Balance Taxes Rollbacks & Other 

Sources Total
General Fund $1,884,482.39 $1,045,885.00 $0.00 $2,930,367.39

Special Revenue Fund $417,038.51 $0.00 $259,674.30 $676,712.81
Capital Projects Fund $126,457.38 $61,803.00 $0.00 $188,260.38

Enterprise Fund $1,654,903.11 $0.00 $1,657,504.00 $3,312,407.11
Fiduciary Fund $17,810.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,810.00

Total All Funds $4,100,691.39 $1,107,688.00 $1,917,178.30 $7,125,557.69

Jacinta Flowers Treasurer
Village Of Lithopolis
Box 278
Lithopolis,Ohio,43136

Budget Commission:





Fiscal Year: 2025
Certificate Submission

County Auditor's Office, Fairfield County, Ohio Date: 07/14/25

Fiscal Year: 2025
Taxing Authority: Village Of Lithopolis
Submitted By: Jacinta Flowers

Fund
Prev. Years
Est. Ending

Cash Bal
Advances

Est.
Carryover

Encumbrances

Start of
Year Est.

Unencumbered
Bal

Est.
Taxes

Est.
Rollbacks

Other
Taxes

Est.
Other

Sources

Total
Est.

Receipts

Total
Available

Source

Approp.
Budget

Unappropriated
Balance Warning

General Fund

1000 - General 
Fund

$1,884,482.39 $0.00 $0.00 $1,884,482.39 $1,045,885.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,045,885.00 $2,930,367.39 $1,748,45
1.57 $1,181,915.82

Special Revenue Fund

2011 - Street 
Construction 

Fund

$62,911.97 $0.00 $0.00 $62,911.97 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $225,000.00 $225,000.00 $287,911.97 $158,367.
65 $129,544.32

2021 - State 
Highway Fund

$34,401.26 $0.00 $0.00 $34,401.26 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $40,401.26 $5,000.00 $35,401.26

2101 - MV 
Permissive 
Tax Fund

$22,684.10 $0.00 $0.00 $22,684.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $37,684.10 $12,000.0
0 $25,684.10

2152 - 
American 

Rescue Act 
Fund

$90,944.37 $0.00 $0.00 $90,944.37 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $90,944.37 $0.00 $90,944.37

2271 - Law 
Enforcement 
& Education

$1,640.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,640.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,640.00 $0.00 $1,640.00

2901 - Police 
Fund

$480.00 $0.00 $0.00 $480.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $480.00 $0.00 $480.00



2902 - Mayor's 
Court 

Computer 
Fund

$1,181.54 $0.00 $0.00 $1,181.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $3,681.54 $2,500.00 $1,181.54

2903 - Parks & 
Recreation

$41,454.46 $0.00 $0.00 $41,454.46 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $41,454.46 $0.00 $41,454.46

2904 - Parks & 
Recreation 

Impact

$112,365.99 $0.00 $0.00 $112,365.99 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,174.30 $5,174.30 $117,540.29 $90,000.0
0 $27,540.29

2905 - Traffic 
Impact

$47,609.89 $0.00 $0.00 $47,609.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $47,609.89 $0.00 $47,609.89

2906 - Mayor's 
Court 

Computer II

$356.56 $0.00 $0.00 $356.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,356.56 $750.00 $606.56

2910 - Right 
of Way Fees

$1,008.37 $0.00 $0.00 $1,008.37 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $6,008.37 $2,500.00 $3,508.37

Capital Projects Fund

4901 Other 
Capital 
Projects

$423.00 $0.00 $0.00 $423.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $423.00 $0.00 $423.00

4903 
Lindeman 

TIF#1

$126,034.38 $0.00 $0.00 $126,034.38 $61,803.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $61,803.00 $187,837.38 $72,500.0
0 $115,337.38

Enterprise Fund

5101 - Water 
Fund

$1,329,703.70 $0.00 $0.00 $1,329,703.70 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $503,640.00 $503,640.00 $1,833,343.70 $974,850.
05 $858,493.65

5201 - Sewer 
Fund

$62,423.50 $0.00 $0.00 $62,423.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $794,210.00 $794,210.00 $856,633.50 $831,943.
43 $24,690.07

5601 - 
Stormwater

$274,759.93 $0.00 $0.00 $274,759.93 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,800.00 $52,800.00 $327,559.93 $42,785.8
3 $284,774.10



5602 - Solid 
Waste

-$13,158.60 $0.00 $0.00 -$13,158.60 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $306,854.00 $306,854.00 $293,695.40 $250,000.
00 $43,695.40

5603 - Internet 
Service

$1,174.58 $0.00 $0.00 $1,174.58 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,174.58 $0.00 $1,174.58

Fiduciary Fund

Mayor's Court 
Fund

$17,810.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,810.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,810.00 $0.00 $17,810.00

Total All 
Funds $4,100,691.39 $0.00 $0.00 $4,100,691.39 $1,107,688.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,917,178.30 $3,024,866.30 $7,125,557.69 $4,191,64

8.53 $2,933,909.16





To be assigned/draft – August 2025 
A resolution to approve the allocation of Public Library Funds  
 
Whereas, On July 1, 2025, the directors of the three public libraries in Fairfield County—the Fairfield 
District Library, the Pickerington Public Library, and the Wagnalls Memorial Library—convened with the 
Fairfield County Auditor to review data and evaluate the distribution of Public Library Funds;  
 
Whereas, Through a collaborative evaluation of overall needs and multiple relevant factors, the 
directors reached a consensus on allocation percentages that reflect a mutually acceptable and 
equitable distribution of funds; 
 
Whereas, The Fairfield County Auditor  has received an estimate of Public Library Funds 
from the State of Ohio;  
 
Whereas, Each library director has confirmed that their annual, estimated expenses in 
operating their respective public library exceed any reasonable amount to be received as an 
estimated share of Public Library Funds; 
 
Whereas, The Fairfield County Budget Commission desires to approve the collaborative 
evaluation of the allocation of the Public Library Funds; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE FAIRFIELD COUNTY BUDGET 
COMMISSION, COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD, STATE OF OHIO, THAT: 
 
Section 1a. The Fairfield County Budget Commission approves the attached allocation of 
Public Library Funds and authorizes signing of the Public Library Fund allocation sheet. 
 
Section 1b. Public Library Funds shall be distributed in accordance with these percentages 
for the allocation of the calendar year of 2026, 2027, 2028, 2029, and 2030: 
 
Fairfield County District Library  57.75 % 
Pickerington Public Library  35.75 % 
Wagnalls Memorial Library      6.50 % 
 
Section 1c.  The Budget Commission approves a scheduled review of the allocation percentages in 
2030, for the purpose of determining the distribution of Public Library Funds for the 2031 calendar year. 
However, an earlier review may be conducted upon the collective request of the library directors. 
 
Section 2. The Fairfield County Budget Commission authorizes the County Auditor’s Office 
to use the same percentages (reflected in Section 1b) if adjustments are needed due to a 
lower or a higher amount of Public Library Funds being authorized by the State of Ohio, as 
compared to the current annual estimate. 
 
Section 3. The Fairfield County Budget Commission requests the County Auditor’s Office to 
report the approval of this resolution to the three libraries.  


	DRAFT 7.14.25 Budget Commission Packet
	Agenda for 5.27 (1)
	signed minutes

	memo
	DRAFT 7.14.25 Budget Commission Packet
	resolution 7.14a

	official packet
	library draft



